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Reliance MediaWorks Limited

Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting 
of the Members of Reliance MediaWorks Limited, will be held 
on Monday, September 30, 2019, at 10.00 a.m., at Reliance 
Studio, Film City Complex, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 065  
to transact the following business:
Ordinary Business:
1.	 To consider and adopt:
	 a.	 the audited financial statement of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and the 
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:

		  and
	 b.	 the audited consolidated financial statement of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2019 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr.Satish Kadakia 
(DIN:07004001), who retires by rotation under the 
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:
3.	 Appointment of Ms. Maya Nair as a Director
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

149 and 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules 
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in force),  
Ms. Maya Nair (DIN: 08429182) who was appointed  
by Board of Directors on April 22, 2019 as an Additional 
Director of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date 
of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing from a member 
under Section 160 of the Act, proposing her candidature 
for appointment as a  Director of the Company, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation.”

4.	 Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures and / 
or other Debt Securities for refinancing of existing debt

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 
71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the Rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), and the provisions of the 
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association 
of the Company, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI”) (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008, as amended, and other applicable SEBI regulations 
and guidelines, and subject to such other applicable laws, 
rules and regulations and guidelines, approval of the Members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Board” which term shall include any duly constituted 
committee of the Board) for making offer(s) or invitation(s) 
to subscribe to Secured / Unsecured / Redeemable / Non-
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) including 
but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, and / 
or other debt securities, etc., on a private placement basis, 
in one or more series / tranches, for refinancing of existing 

debt within the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as 
may be approved by the Members from time to time.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect 
to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised to 
determine, negotiate, modify and finalise the terms of issue 
including the class of investors to whom NCDs are to be 
issued, time of issue, securities to be offered, the number 
of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate, premium 
/ discount, listing, redemption period, utilisation of the issue 
proceeds and to do all such acts and things and deal with all 
such matters and take all such steps as may be necessary and 
to sign and execute any deeds / documents / undertakings 
/ agreements / papers / writings, as may be required in this 
regard.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
Mangala Savla 

Company Secretary
Registered Office: 
Communication Centre 
Film City Complex 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai 400 065 
CIN : U29299MH1987PLC045446 
Website: www.reliancemediaworks.com 
August 30, 2019
Notes:
1.	 Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the “Act”), relating to the special business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (the ‘Meeting’) is 
annexed hereto.

2.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll 
instead of herself / himself and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. The instrument appointing the 
Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and 
signed, not less than 48 hours before commencement of 
the Meeting.

3.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. However, a Member holding more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy 
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 
shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove his identity at 
the time of attending the Meeting.

4.	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorised 
representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to 
send to the Company a certified true copy of their board 
resolution authorising their representative(s) together with 
their specimen signature(s) to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the Meeting.

5.	 Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the 
venue of the meeting are annexed hereto.

6.	 Members / Proxies are requested to bring their duly filled 
attendance slip sent herewith along with their copy of the 
annual report to the Meeting.

7.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote at the Meeting.
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8.	 Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested 
to write their DP ID and Client ID numbers and those who 
hold shares in physical form are requested to write their 
Folio number in the attendance slip for attending the 
Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the 
Meeting.

9.	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice are open for inspection by the Members at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days, 
except Saturdays between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. up 
to the date of the Meeting. 

10.	 Members are requested to intimate immediately any 
change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. The Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent 
cannot change bank particulars or bank mandates for shares 
held in electronic form.

11.	 Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform Link 
Intime India Private Limited, the Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agent immediately on:

a. 	 the change in the residential status on return to India for 
permanent settlement; and

b. 	 the particulars of the bank account(s) maintained in India 
with complete name, branch, account type, account 
number and address of the bank with pin code number, if 
not furnished earlier.

12.	 Re-appointment of Director:
	 At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Satish Kadakia, 

Director of the Company retires by rotation under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

	 The details pertaining to Mr. Satish Kadakia are furnished 
hereunder:

	 Mr. Satish Kadakia, 62 years, holds a bachelor’s degree 
in commerce from University of Mumbai. He is also a 
Chartered Accountant by qualification and is a member of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He is Law 
Graduate from Mumbai University. He has over 36 years of 
experience in the field of accounts, finance and taxation.

	 He has been appointed as a director of the Company with 
effect from September 28, 2015. He hold 10 shares in the 
company as on March 31, 2019.

	 He does not hold any relationship with other directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. He has 
attended Three out of Four Board Meeting during the 
financial year 2018-19. He is a chairman of Share Transfer 
Committee of Reliance MediaWorks Limited. The other 
details of directorship / membership / chairmanship held 
by him are as under:

(` in millions)

Sr.  
No.

Name of the companies / bodies 
corporate / firms / association of 
individuals

Directorship / 
Membership / 
Chairmanship

1. Reliance Unicorn Enterprises Private 
Limited

Director

2. Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited Director
3. Big Synergy Media Limited Director

4. Reliance MediaWorks Financial Services 
Private Limited

Director

5. Reliance MediaWorks Theatres Limited Director

13.	 Members holding shares in physical mode:
	 a. 	 are required to submit their Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) and bank account details to the 
Company / Link Intime India Private Limited, if not 
registered with the Company as mandated by SEBI.

	 b. 	 are advised to register the nomination in respect of 
their shareholding in the Company. Nomination Form 
(SH-13) is put on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed at link www.reliancemediaworks.com

	 c. 	 are requested to register / update their e-mail address 
with the Company / Link Intime India Private Limited 
for receiving all communications from the Company 
electronically

14.	 Members holding shares in electronic mode:
	 a.	 are requested to submit their PAN and bank account 

details to their respective DPs with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts.

	 b.	 are advised to contact their respective DPs for 
registering the nomination.

	 c.	 are requested to register / update their e-mail 
address with their respective DPs for receiving all 
communications from the Company electronically.

15.	 Members who hold shares in physical form, in multiple 
folios, in identical names or joint holding in the same order 
of names are requested to send the share certificates to 
the Registrar and Transfer Agent for consolidation into a 
single folio. Member who have not registered their email 
address so far are requested to the registered email address 
so that they can received the Annual Report and other 
communication from the Company electronically.

16.	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act 
read with Rules made thereunder, the Company is offering 
e-voting facility to all Members of the Company through 
Notice dated August 30, 2019 (remote e-voting). A person, 
whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or 
in the Register of Beneficial Owners (in case of electronic 
shareholding) maintained by the depositories as on the cut-
off date i.e. September 23, 2019 only shall be entitled to 
avail the facility of remote e-voting/voting. Karvy Fintech 
Private Limited will be facilitating remote e-voting to 
enable the Members to cast their votes electronically.  
The Members can cast their vote online from 10.00 A.M. 
on September 26, 2019 to 5.00 P.M. on September 29, 
2019. The Members shall refer to the detailed procedure 
on remote e-voting given in the e-voting instruction slip. 
The facility for voting shall also be available at the Meeting. 
The members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting 
prior to the Meeting may also attend the Meeting, but shall 
not be entitled to cast their votes again at the meeting.

	 The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Anil Lohia or in 
his absence Mr. C.C. Dayal, Partners, M/s. Dayal and Lohia, 
Chartered Accountants as the Scrutiniser to scrutinise the 
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

	 The Scrutiniser will submit his report to the Chairman or 
any person authorised by him after completion of the 
scrutiny and the results of voting will be announced 
after the Meeting of the Company. Subject to receipt of 
requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed 
to be passed on the date of the Meeting. The result of the 
voting will be posted on the website of the Company at  
www.reliancemediaworks.com and posted on the website 
of Karvy Fintech Private Limited.
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Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the accompanying Notice dated August 30, 2019.

	 Item No. 3  - Appointment of Ms. Maya Nair as a 
Director

	 As per provisions of Section 149 and 152 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for 
the time being in force), Ms. Maya Nair (DIN: 08429182) 
was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional 
Director of the Company with effect from  April 22, 2019.

	 As per provisions of the Act, as an Additional Director, Ms. 
Maya Nair holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. Ms. Maya Nair has given her consent for 
the appointment and has also confirmed that she is not in 
any way disqualified from the appointment as per provisions 
of Section 164 of the Act.

	 The Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member under section 160 of the Act, proposing the 
candidature of Ms. Maya Nair for the office of a Director of 
the Company.

	 Maya Nair is B-Tech Electronics Engineering, M-Tech 
Software System, PGDBA Finance. She is presently working 
with Reliance Capital Ltd as a Chief Information Security 
Officer – Risk & Compliance. She has 22 years of Experience 
in the field of Digital Marketing & Security. 

	 She is also on the Board of  Reliance Broadcast Network 
Limited and Reliance Corporate Advisory Services Limited. 
She is also Chairman of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
of Reliance MediaWorks Limited.

	 Item No. 4 - Private Placement of Non - Convertible 
Debentures and / or other Debt Securities.

	 As per the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”) and its Rules thereunder, a company 
offering or making an invitation to subscribe to redeemable 
subscribe to Secured / Unsecured / Redeemable / Non-
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD’s) on 
a private placement basis is required to obtain the prior 
approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution. 
Such approval by a Special Resolution can be obtained 
once a year for all the offers and invitations for such NCD’s 
to be made during the year.

	 NCD’s including subordinate debentures, bonds, and / or 
other debt securities, etc., issued on a private placement 
basis constitutes a significant source of borrowing for the 
Company and meet the ongoing funding requirements for 
the Company’s business activities, for general corporate 
purposes and refinancing of the existing debt obligations of 
the Company.

	 The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 
30, 2019 has considered the proposal to make an offer 
or invitation, to subscribe to securities through private 
placement subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 
ensuing AGM for all the offers or invitations for NCDs to be 
made during the year.

	 It is proposed to obtain an enabling approval of shareholders 
to offer or invite subscriptions for NCD’s including 
subordinated debentures, bonds, and / or other debt 
securities, etc., on private placement basis, at appropriate 
time, in one or more series / tranches, within the overall 
borrowing limits of the Company, as may be approved by 
the Members from time to time, with authority to the 
Board to determine the terms and conditions, including the 
issue price of the NCD’s, interest, repayment, security, or 
otherwise, as it may deem expedient and to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things in connection therewith and 
incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion 
deems fit, the Board would act on the basis of the enabling 
resolution without being required to seek any further 
consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the 
end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given 
their approval thereto expressly by the authority of the 
resolution. Accordingly, the approval of the Members is 
being sought by way of a Special Resolution under Sections 
42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Act and Rules made thereunder as set out in Item No. 4 
appended to this Notice.

	 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their 
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in this resolution.

	 The Board accordingly recommends the Special Resolution 
set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for the 
approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary

Registered Office: 
Communication Centre 
Film City Complex 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai 400 065 
CIN : U29299MH1987PLC045446 
Website: www.reliancemediaworks.com

August 30, 2019
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareowners,

Your Directors present the 32nd Annual Report and the audited 
financial statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

Financial Results and State of Company’s Affairs

The standalone performance of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019 is summarised below:

(` in million)

Particulars Financial 
Year ended 
March 31, 

2019

Financial Year 
ended  

March 31, 
2018

Total revenue 898.90     192.95

Profit / (Loss) before tax     (1 387.58) (1 885.54)                   

Tax expense                 - -

Profit / (Loss) after tax (1 387.58) (1 885.54)                      

Add: Balance brought forward 
from previous year 

(31 627.19) (29 741.34)

Balance carried to Balance 
sheet 

(33 014.78) (31 627.19)

Financial Performance
During the financial year under review, the total revenue stood 
at ` 898.90 million against ` 192.95 million in the previous 
financial year. The overall net Loss of the Company before 
exceptional items is ` 1,387.58 million compared to net loss 
of ` 1,885.54 million in the previous financial year. The Loss 
after exceptional items during the current financial year is  
` 1,387.58 million as against loss of ` 1,885.54 million in the 
previous financial year. The loss during current financial year is 
primarily on account of expenses related to interest and finance 
charges.
Dividend
During the year under review, the Board of Directors has not 
recommended dividend on the equity shares of the Company.
Overview and state of the Company’s affairs
Business Operations
During the financial year 2018-19, Big Synergy has successfully 
produced further seasons of Kaun Banega Crorepati in Hindi and 
other regional languages, Dus ka Dum, Sell me the Answer, IPL- 
Event for Star, The Scam for Applause. Big Synergy is expanding 
its offering into the fiction segment for both TV and Digital Media 
with popular fiction show like Savdhaan India. Further, some of 
the committed projects are Amit Tandon (Comic Show)- for 
Netflix, Teachers Genuine Stories for Vuclip.
Deposits
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed 
deposits during the year.
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given 
and securities provided are provided in the standalone financial 
statement Note No. 4, 5, 6 and 39.
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

 A report on the performance and financial position of each 
of the subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint 
venture as per Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) is provided 

in the consolidated financial statement. No Company become 
or ceased to be subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate of the 
Company.

Consolidated Financial Statement

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statement for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019, based on the financial statement 
received from subsidiary companies, associate companies and 
joint venture, as approved by their respective Board of Directors 
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Indian 
Accounting Standard Rules, 2015 (‘IND AS’). Prescribed u/s 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 other recognised accounting 
practice and policies.

Directors

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent 
Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria 
of Independence as prescribed under the Act.

During the year under review Mr. Gautam Doshi, Ms. Anuprita 
Daga and Mr. Parag Ved, ceased to be Director with effect 
from October 11, 2018,  October 9, 2018 and July 24, 2019. 
The Board places on record its deep sense of appreciation for 
the valuable contribution made by them during their tenure as 
Director of the Company. 

Ms. Meenal Purswami was appointed as an Additional Director 
on December 21, 2018 and ceased to be Additional Director 
w.e.f. February 20, 2019.

The Company has appointed Ms. Maya Nair as an Additional 
Director of the Company w.e.f. April 22, 2019.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,  
Mr. Satish Kadakia, Director of the Company, retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, Ms. Mangala Savla & Mr. Satish Kadakia was 
appointed as Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) with effect from July 25, 2018. Further Priya Walavalkar 
resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f. May 31, 2018.

Evaluation of Directors, Board and Committees

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of 
the individual Directors, Board and its Committee, which includes 
criteria for performance evaluation.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out 
an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of the Committees of the Board. The Board performance 
was evaluated based on inputs received from all the Directors 
after considering criteria such as Board composition and 
structure, effectiveness of Board / Committee processes, and 
information provided to the Board, etc. A separate meeting of 
the Independent Directors was also held during the year for the 
evaluation of the performance of non-independent Directors, 
performance of the Board as a whole.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also 
reviewed the performance of the individual Directors based on 
their knowledge, level of preparation and effective participation 
in meetings, understanding of their roles as directors, etc.
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Policy on appointment and remuneration for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
has devised a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees 
and their Remuneration. The Committee has formulated the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a Director. The policy on the above is attached 
as Annexure - A.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby 
confirmed that:

i. 	 In the preparation of the annual financial statement for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable 
Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii. 	 The Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for 
the year ended on that date;

iii. 	 The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. 	 The Directors had prepared the annual financial statement 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 on a ‘going 
concern’ basis;

v. 	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties
All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into / by 
the Company during the financial year under review with related 
parties were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course 
of business. There were no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, which 
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or 
transactions vis-à-vis the Company. Your Directors draw 
attention of the members to the Notes to Accounts which set 
outs related party disclosures.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the 
financial position of the Company

There were no material changes and commitments affecting 
the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Meetings of the Board
During the year, four Board Meetings were held on July 25, 
2018, August 29, 2018, December 21, 2018 and March 29, 
2019.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of Directors namely 
Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal, Chairman and Ms. Maya Nair & Mr. 
Satish Kadakia as members. During the year, all recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

During the year, two Audit Committee Meetings were held on 
August 29, 2019, and March 29, 2019.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The term of reference of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are in accordance with the provisions of the Act, as 
amended from time to time.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of Mr. Maya Nair 
as Chairman, Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Satish Kadakia 
as members.

Auditors and Auditor’s Report

M/s. M. S. Sethi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, appointed 
as Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
December 22, 2017.

The Company has received letter from M/s M.S. Sethi & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants that they are not disqualified 
from continuing as Auditors of the Company. The Notes on 
Financial Statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

The observations and comments given by the Auditors in their 
report read together with notes on financial statements are self-
explanatory and hence do not call for any further comments 
under Section 134 of the Act.

Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied with 
the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost 
records, for any of the products of the Company, under Section 
148(1) of the Act.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed 
M/s. Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP, to undertake 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The comments given by 
the Secretarial Auditors is self-explanatory. The Secretarial Audit 
Report has placed before the Board and noted by the Board. 
The Board Directed the management to ensure the Compliances 
as observed in the Report. The Audit Report of the Secretarial 
Auditor is attached as Annexure-B. 

Annual Return

As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the  
Annual Return for the financial year 2018-19 is put up on 
the Company’s website and can be accessed at https://www.
reliancemediaworks.com/Annual-Reports.aspx.
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Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The Company is a media entertainment Company and does not 
involve in any manufacturing activity, most of the information 
as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 
8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 
However, the information as applicable has been given in 
Annexure - D forming part of this Report.

Vigil mechanism
In accordance with Section 177 of the Act, the Company has a 
Vigil Mechanism, to address the genuine concerns, if any of the 
Directors and employees. The policy can also be accessed on the 
Company’s website.

Risk Management
The Company has laid down a robust Risk Management 
Policy, defining Risk profiles involving Strategic Technological, 
Operational, Financial, Organisational, Legal and Regulatory risks 
within a well defined framework. The Risk Management Policy 
acts as an enabler of growth for the Company by helping its 
businesses to identify the inherent risks, asses, evaluate and 
monitor these risks continuously and undertake effective steps 
to manage these risks.

Compliance with provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women 
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013
The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of 
woman employees and it has in place a policy which provides for 
protection against sexual harassment of women at work place 
and for prevention and redressal of such complaints. During the 
year, no such complaints were received. The Company has also 
constituted an Internal Compliance Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee has formulated a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy(CSR Policy) indicating the activities to 
be undertaken by the Company. The CSR Policy may be 
accessed on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.
reliancemediaworks.com /pdf / Group_CSR_Policy_Document.
pdf.

The CSR Committee consists of Mr. Sushilkumar Agrawal as 
Chairman, Mr. Satish Kadakia , and Ms. Maya Nair as members. 
The disclosures with respect to CSR activities is given in 
Annexure-D.

Orders, if any, passed by Regulator or Courts or Tribunals
No orders have been passed by the regulator or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s 
operations.

Internal Financial Controls and their adequacy
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 
across the organization. The same is subject to review periodically 
by the internal audit cell for its effectiveness. During the year, 
such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses 
in the design or operation were observed.
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Sushilkumar Agrawal Satish Kadakia
Director Whole-time Director & CFO

Mumbai
August 30, 2019



10

Reliance MediaWorks Limited

Directors’ Report

Annexure - A
Policy on appointment and remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees

1.	 Introduction
	 1.1 	Reliance MediaWorks Limited considers human resources as its invaluable assets. This policy aims to harmonise the 

aspirations of the directors / employees with the goals of the Company.
	 1.2  	Human capital is a strategic source of value creation. As part of our progressive HR philosophy, it is necessary to have in 

place a comprehensive Compensation Policy, which is in line with the industry trend and is employee friendly.
2.	 Objectives
	 2.1 	Ensuring that the quantum and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate, 

employees to run the Company successfully.
	 2.2  	Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance benchmarks.
	 2.3  	Ensure that annual compensation review considers industry / business outlook and strategies adopted by industry peers, 

differentiates employees based on their performance / skill sets and also protects employees, particularly those in junior 
cadre, against inflationary pressures.

	 2.4	 Retention of high performers at all levels and those playing critical roles.
3.  	 Scope
	 The Board has constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” in line with the requirements under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013. This Policy sets out the broad guiding principles for the Committee for recommending to the Board 
the appointment and remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel, senior managerial personnel of the Company.

4.  	 Definitions
	 4.1 	“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.
	 4.2 	“Key Managerial Personnel” means
		  (i) 	 the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
		  (ii)  	 the Company Secretary;
		  (iii)  	the Whole-time Director;
		  (iv) 	 the Chief Financial Officer; and
		  (v)  	such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
	 4.3 	‘‘Senior Management’’ means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team excluding Board 

of Directors comprising of all members of management one level below the executive directors, if any.
5.  	 Policy
	 5.1 	Appointment of Directors / Key Managerial / Senior Management personnel
		  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, considers qualifications, positive attributes, areas of expertise and 

number of Directorships and Memberships held in various committees of other companies by such persons for selection. The 
Board considers the recommendation of the Committee’s and takes appropriate decisions. The Company also considers the 
requirement of skills and effectiveness of persons contributing to the Company’s business and policy decisions.

	 5.2	 Remuneration to Directors / Key Managerial Personnel
		  5.2.1 	 The remuneration of the Directors / Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors and Managers etc. will be 

governed as per provisions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made therein from time to time.
		  5.2.2 	 Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the 

Committees thereof as approved by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Non-Executive Directors shall 
also be entitled to profit related Commission, if approved by the Board, in addition to the sitting fees.

		  5.2.3 	 The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and approve 
the remuneration payable to the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel / Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company within the overall limits, if any, approved by the shareholders.

		  5.2.4 	 The remuneration structure shall include the following components:
  				    (i)  	 Basic Pay
 				    (ii)  	Perquisites and Allowances
				    (iii) 	 Stock Options, if any.
				    (iv) 	 Commission (Applicable in case of Executive Directors / Directors)
 				    (v)  	Retiral Benefits
				    (vi) 	 Performance Linked Incentives
 		  5.2.5 	 The Annual Plan, Objectives, financial results of the Company shall be reviewed  by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and performance incentives, increment, revision in remuneration etc. will be proposed 
based on the achievements.

	 5.3	 Remuneration to other employees
		  Employees shall be assigned grades / bands according to their qualifications and work experience, competencies as well 

as their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual remuneration shall be determined within the appropriate 
grade / bands and shall be based on various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience, performance and 
prevailing remuneration levels for equivalent jobs.

6.	 Retention Features as part of Compensation Package
	 Based on the organizational need for retaining performing employees and those in critical roles, certain retention features may 

be rolled out as part of the overall compensation package. These may take form of Retention Bonuses (RBs), Special Monetary 
Programs (SMPs), Long-term Incentives (LTIs), Employee Stock Options, etc.

7.	 Modification and Amendment
	 The policy is subject to modification, amendment and alterations by the management at any time without assigning any reasons.
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Annexure - B

Form No. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To 
The Members, 
Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
Communication Centre,  
Film City Complex 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai 400065

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
governance practice by Reliance MediaWorks Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during audit period covering the financial year 
ended 31stMarch, 2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has followed proper 
Board processes and have required compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019, according to the provisions of:

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv.	 The Annual performance report under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment is yet to be filed; and External Commercial Borrowings 
– Not Applicable;

v.	 The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 
were not applicable to the Company during the financial year under report:-

	 a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

	 b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

	 d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

	 e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

	 f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

	 h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

We have also examined compliances with applicable clauses of:

I.	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India;

II.	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) – Not Applicable.

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc., except for 

1.	 Disclosure of appointment of Ms. Priya Walawalkar as the Company secretary w.e.f on February 01, 2018 and resignation w.e.f 
May 31, 2018 and explanation on qualification made in the secretarial audit report was not mentioned in the Board’s report for 
the financial year 2017-18.

2.	 Compliance of Section 168(2) pertaining to the date of resignation of Mr. Gautam Doshi, Ms. Anuprita Daga and Ms. Meenal 
Purswani. 
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3.	 Delay in filing of Form pertaining to re-appointment of Mr. Satish Kadakia, Whole time Director of the Company.

4.	 The Company was in process of appointing a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mr. Satish Kadakia was appointed as CFO on July 
25, 2018.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent atleast seven 
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no 
dissenting views were expressed.

Based on the representation made by the Company and relied upon, we report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with its size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. We were confirmed that except the laws as stated in this report, no other laws were required to be 
audited for the financial year 2018-19.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken event / action having a major bearing on the Company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.

a.	 Approval of issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures;

b.	 Appointment of Chief Financial Officer;

c.	 Appointment and resignation of Company Secretary;

d.	 Appointment of Non-Executive Director;

e.	 Re-appointment of Whole Time Director for a term of 5 years

f.	 Resignation of Directors

g.	 Reconstitutions of various committees

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Bhavika Bhatt
Designated Partner
ACS No.: 36181
COP No.: 13376

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 
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Annexure - C

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(a) Conservation of Energy:
The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : The Company requires energy for its operations and is 

making all efforts to conserve energy by monitoring energy 
costs and periodically reviews of the consumption of energy. 
It also takes appropriate steps to reduce the consumption 
through efficiency in usage and timely maintenance / 
installation / upgradation of energy saving devices.

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment

(b) Technology Absorption, Adoption and Innovation:
(i)	 The efforts made towards technology absorption: : The Company uses latest technology and equipment into 

the business. Further the Company is not engaged in any 
manufacturing activities.

(i)	� The benefits derived like product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development or import substitution

(iii)	� In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 
financial year)	

	 (a)	 The details of technology imported

	 (b)	 The year of import

	 (c)	 Whether technology been fully absorbed?

	 (d)	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof.

	 (e)	� The expenditure incurred on Research and 
development

: The Company has not spent any amount towards research 
and developmental activities and has been active in 
harnessing and tapping the latest and the best technology 
in the industry.

(c) Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
(a)	 Total Foreign Exchange earnings : Nil
(b)	 Total Foreign Exchange outgo : Nil

Directors’ Report
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Annexure - D

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2018-19

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and 
a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes:

	 The Company has a robust CSR Policy at group level. As per the said policy, all our efforts are focused towards two goals: 
building a great enterprise for the stakeholders and a great future for our country.

	 Our approach is to interweave social responsibility into the Company’s mainstream business functions through translating 
commitments into policies, which not only drive all employees but influence and mobilize stakeholders, especially partners 
and suppliers, to embrace responsible business practices in their respective spheres of action. The policy affirms business 
objectives and strategy along with our commitment to preserve natural resources and augment the growth and development to 
employees and families, the communities we operate in, suppliers / vendors and our investors. Through the social policy manual, 
the Company seeks to engage with all the stakeholders, using it as a reference or guideline for all stakeholders and practitioners. 
Our CSR policy is placed on our website at the http://www.reliancemediaworks.com /pdf / Group_CSR_Policy_Document.pdf.

2.	 The composition of CSR Committee:

	 Mr. Sushilkumar Agrawal, Chairman (Independent Director) 

	 Mr. Satish Kadakia (Whole Time  Director)

	 Ms. Maya Nair (Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)

3.	 Average net loss of the Company for last three financial years:

	 Average net loss of ` 1685.16 millions

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):

	 Since the average net profits of the three immediately preceding financial years is negative, the Company is not required to incur 
any expenditure on the CSR activities for the financial year 2018-19.

5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

	 a.	 Total amount spent for the financial year:- NA

	 b.	 Amount unspent, if any:- NA

	 c.	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sr. 
No.

CSR Projects 
or activity 
identified.

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered.

Projects or 
Programs

(1)Local area 
or other

(2)Specify 
the state 
and district 
where 
projects or 
programs 
was 
undertaken.

Amount 
Outlay 
(budget) 
Project or 
Programs 
wise.

Amount 
spent on the 
projects or 
programs 
Sub-heads:

(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects or 
programs.

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
Expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period.

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency.

Not Applicable

6.	 In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any 
part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

	 Not applicable.

7.	 A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 
with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

	 The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO

Sushikumar Agrawal 
Chairman, CSR Committee

                  

August 30, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statement

To The Members of 
Reliance MediaWorks Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
1.	 We have audited the accompanying financial statements 

of Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred as “the 
financial statements”).

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its 
loss including other comprehensive income, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3.	 We conducted our audit of the financial statements in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on the financial statements.

Going Concern
4.	 We draw attention to Note 40 in the financial statements 

regarding accumulated loss exceeding the Net Worth of 
the Company and the Company has prepared the financial 
statements on a going concern basis for the reasons stated 
therein.

	 Our opinion is not modified in this respect;
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
5.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements
6.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
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uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Information
7.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in Director’s report and shareholders 
information included in the annual report but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

	 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is material misstatement therein; we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
8.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable.

9.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report 
that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

	 c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act;

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the Directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act;

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has not paid any managerial remuneration 
to directors during the year.

	 h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

		  (i)	 There were no pending litigations which would 
impact financial position of the Company.

		  (ii)	 The Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

		  (iii)	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
protection fund by the Company during the year 
ended March 31, 2019.

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi
Proprietor
Membership No. 039784
UDIN: 19039784AAABAD1466

Place	:	Mumbai
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statement
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statement

Referred to in our Report of even date on Accounts of Reliance 
MediaWorks Limited for year ended March 31, 2019

i) 	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 b) 	 As explained to us, most of the fixed assets have been 
physically verified by the management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. 

	 c)	 The Company does not have any immovable property 
hence clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

ii)	 As explained to us, there is no inventory hence clause 3(ii) 
of the Order is not applicable.

iii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has granted unsecured loans, to its wholly 
owned subsidiaries covered in the Register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect 
of such loans:

	 a)	 The loan given in earlier year up to 31st March 2014 
is interest free and incremental loan given thereafter 
is interest bearing. The loans given are repayable on 
demand.

	 b)  The rate of interest and other terms and conditions 
on which the loans had been granted to its subsidiary 
Companies are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company.

	 c)  There are no overdue amounts for more than ninety 
days in respect of the loan granted to its subsidiary 

Companies listed in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act.

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect 
to the loans and investments made.

v)	 According to information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not accepted any deposits under the 
provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there 
under.

vi)	 According to information and explanations given to us, 
maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed for 
the Company by the Central Government under sub section 
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii)	 (a)  Based on our examination of the books and records, 
the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
with appropriate authority undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value 
added tax, duty of customs, service tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues, 
wherever applicable, during the year. Further no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, income tax, sales tax, Goods and Service Tax, 
value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

	 (b) 	 As per the information and explanations given to 
us, there are no disputed statutory dues pending to 
be deposited with the respective authorities by the 
Company other than the following mentioned in the 
table:

Name of the statute Nature of the Dues Amount  
(` million)

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

VAT, Madhya Pradesh Duty and Penalty 2.78 2006-2007 Commercial Tax Officer,           
Madhya Pradesh

VAT, Madhya Pradesh Duty and Penalty 7.04 2007-2008 Commercial Tax Officer,           
Madhya Pradesh

VAT, Madhya Pradesh Duty and Penalty 5.3 2008-2009 Commercial Tax Officer, Madhya 
Pradesh

VAT, Ghaziabad Duty and Penalty 75.29 2011-2012 Additional Commissioner Appeals 
(Ghaziabad)

VAT, Ghaziabad Duty and Penalty 90 2012-2013 Additional Commissioner Appeals 
(Ghaziabad)

VAT, Ghaziabad Duty and Penalty 204.45 2013-2014 Additional Commissioner Appeals 
(Ghaziabad)

VAT, Ghaziabad Duty and Penalty 1493 2014-2015 Additional Commissioner Appeals 
(Ghaziabad)

VAT, West Bengal Duty and Penalty 6.21 2008-2009 Commercial Tax Officer,                
West Bengal

VAT, Rajasthan Duty and Penalty 278.5 2010-2015 Deputy Commissioner, Jaipur

VAT, Kanpur Duty and Penalty 6.48 2007-2008 Additional Commissioner (Appeals), 
Kanpur
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Name of the statute Nature of the Dues Amount  
(` million)

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

VAT, Maharashtra Duty and Penalty 106.22 2012-2013 Deputy Commissioner of Commercial 
Tax, Maharashtra

Entertainment Tax Entertainment Tax 13.93 2006-2011 Supreme Court

Entertainment Tax Entertainment Tax 48.99 2006-2011 Hon’ble High Court, Madhya Pradesh

Entertainment Tax Entertainment Tax 7.15 2007-2011  Divisional Commissioner, Pune

Income tax Act, 1961 Tax deducted at source 1.24 Prior Years  Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)

Chapter V of the Finance 
Act, 1994

Penalty 746.21 2009-2010 to 
2013-14

Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

Chapter V of the Finance 
Act, 1994

Penalty 6.86 2006-2007 Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

Chapter V of the Finance 
Act, 1994

Penalty 6.77 2008-2009 Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

Chapter V of the Finance 
Act, 1994

Penalty 240.41 2014-2015 Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

viii)	 The Company has not raised any funds from financial 
institutions or banks or by issue of debentures during the 
year, hence, question of repayment of dues to them does 
not arise.

ix)	 The Company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the term loans 
taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose 
for which they were raised.

x)	  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit.

xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013.

xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been 

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv)	 According to the information and explanations give to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year.

xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi
Proprietor
Membership No. 039784
UDIN: 19039784AAABAD1466

Place	:	Mumbai
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statement
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statement

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members 
of Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“the Company”) of even 
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Reliance MediaWorks Limited as of 31st March, 
2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi
Proprietor
Membership No. 039784
UDIN: 19039784AAABAD1466

Place	:	Mumbai
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)
Note As at 

March 31, 2019
 As at  

March 31, 2018
ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  0.35  0.51 
(b) Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture 4  1,050.10  1,050.10 
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5  1.00  1.00 
(ii) Loans 6  15.76  -   
(iii) Other Financial Assets 7  -    -   

(d) Other Non Current Assets 8  94.28  143.29 
 1,161.49  1,194.91 

2 Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5  175.30  19.05 
(ii) Trade Receivables 9  0.60  6.98 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10  8.50  4.66 
(iv) Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above 11  108.57  235.18 
(v) Loans 6  461.00  14.46 
(vi) Other Financial Assets 7  6.60  3.27 

(b) Other Current Assets 8 123.44  131.61 
884.01  415.22 

(c) Assets classified as held for disposal / distribution 42  -    1,452.16 
TOTAL ASSETS  2,045.50  3,062.28 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 12  966.04  966.04 
(b) Other Equity 13  (20,281.69)  (18,894.11)

 (19,315.65)  (17,928.06)
Liabilities
1 Non current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14  20,197.82  20,234.72 

(b) Provisions 15  0.08  0.07 
 20,197.90  20,234.79 

2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14  110.00  110.00 
(ii) Trade Payables 16  172.35  186.70 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 757.81  326.62 

(b) Provisions 15  0.15  0.13 
(c) Other Current Liabilities 18  122.94  132.11 

 1,163.25  755.56 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,045.50  3,062.28 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 40

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2018

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2018

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)
Note Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 19  22.54  31.49 
Other Income 20 876.36  161.46 
TOTAL 898.90  192.95 
Expenses
Purchases of Stock In Trade  -    2.74 
Employee Benefit Expenses 21  7.25  13.73 
Depreciation 3  0.16  0.20 
Other Expenses 22 355.37  203.66 
Finance Costs 23 1,923.61  1,858.16 
TOTAL 2,286.40  2,078.49 

Profit / (loss) before tax for the year  (1,387.49)  (1,885.54)
Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations  (1,387.49)  (1,885.54)
Tax Expenses
 - Current Tax -   -   
 - Deferred Tax -   -   

-   -   
Profit / (loss) from continuing operations after tax  (1,387.49)  (1,885.54)
Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations -   -
Profit / (loss) for the year  (1,387.49)  (1,885.54)
Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
 - Re-measurement of defined benefit plans : Gains/(Loss)  (0.09)  (0.31)
 - Income tax relating to the above  -    -   

 (0.09)  (0.31)
Total Comprehensive Income  (1,387.58)  (1,885.85)
Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of ` 5/- each) 
 - Basic and Diluted 24  (7.18)  (9.76)
Earnings per Equity Share from Continuing operations  
(Face value of ` 5/- each) 
 - Basic and Diluted  (7.18)  (9.76)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 40
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(Currency : ` in millions)

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2019 

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018 

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit/ (loss) before tax as per Statement of profit and loss  (1,387.49)  (1,885.85)

Adjustment for:

Depreciation / amortisation  0.16 0.20 

Finance costs (net)  1,923.61 1,858.16 

Interest income  (10.79)  (54.93)

Provision for doubtful debts / advances/ provision written back (264.46)  (100.01)

Contribution to Gratuity Fund  -    (0.33)

Loss/ (Profit) on sale of equity shares  -   82.21 

Gain form change in Faiir Value  (12.57)  -   

Gain on sale of current investments  (2.68)  (3.03)

Gain on Disposal of Assets held for sale  (547.84) -

Operating profit before working capital changes  (302.06)  (103.58)

Adjustment for:

(Increase)/ Decrease  in trade receivables 6.38  (6.98)

(Increase) / Decrease in other receivables 151.20  (132.72)

Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables  240.94  148.14 

Cash used in operating activities 96.46  (95.14)

Taxes paid (net of refunds) 48.98 90.87 

Net cash used in operating activities (A) 145.44  (4.27)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of Assets held for sale  2,000.00 

Sale of non current investments in shares of joint venture 0.30 

Purchase of non current investments in shares of subsidiaries/ associates  -    (1,050.00)

Investment in National Savings Certificate  (1.00)

Proceeds form Sale of current investment (net)  (156.25) 208.53 

Loan to subsidiaries and joint ventures (net) current  (462.30)  -   

Purchase of current investments  -    (224.50)

Interest income 6.27 8.42 

 1,387.72  (1,058.25)

Standalone Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(Currency : ` in millions)

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2019 

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018 

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings current (Net)  -   110.00 

Repayment of borrowings current  -    (350.00)

Proceeds from borrowings non current  -   2,334.00 

Repayment of borrowings non current  (36.90)  (930.00)

Finance costs (net)  (1,492.42)  (147.10)

Net cash flow from financing activities   (C)  (1,529.32) 1,016.90 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)  3.84  (45.62)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 4.66 50.28

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (Refer note 10) 8.50 4.66 

Notes:

1) 	 Cash and cash equivalents at the year end comprises:

	 Cash on hand*  -*  -* 

	 ‘- 	 Balance with Banks in Current accounts  8.50  4.66 

	 * Cash balance of  ` 39,535  (2018: ` 7,613)  8.50  4.66 

 The above Statement of cash flow  should be read in conjuction with accompanying notes 1 to 40 

Standalone Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019		

(Currency : ` in millions)

1.	 Corporate Information

	 Reliance MediaWorks Limited (‘Reliance MediaWorks’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated in 1987 as a Private Limited 
Company and is currently a Public Limited Company.

	 The equity shares of the Company were listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited till May 6, 2014. 
Reliance MediaWorks was primarily engaged in theatrical exhibition, film production services and film production and distribution 
and related services. The Company currently owns properties for letting out for theatrical exhibitions. Further during the year, 
the Company traded in precious metals and earned rental income from letting out studios on rent.”

2.	 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

2.1	 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

	 a)	 Compliance with Ind AS

		  i)	 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

	 b)	 Historical cost convention

		  These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities 
which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

		  Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also its functional currency.

2.2	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

	 a)	 Current versus non-current classification

		  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria’s set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business activities and its 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 b)	 Fair Value Measurement

		  The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either: 

		  	 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

		  	 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

		  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability 
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

		  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs.

		  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole:

		  - 	 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

		  - 	 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable

		  - 	 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

		  For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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	 c)	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

		  i)	 An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

		  ii)	 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured at :

			   -	 its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates.

			   - 	 any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management.

			   -	 the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 
located, the obligation which is to be incurred either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having 
used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

		  iii)	 After initial recognition, PPE is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

		  iv)	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognized.

	 d)	 Intangible Assets

		  ii)	 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Costs relating to software licenses, 
which are acquired, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective individual useful life 
which generally do not exceed 5 years.

	 e)	 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment and Amortization of Intangible Assets

		  i)	 Tangible Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes (other than 
those recoverable from tax authorities) and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition / construction and 
installation of the fixed assets for bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

		  ii)	 Depreciation on fixed assets is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under Straight Line Method, at the rates 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except in the case of leasehold improvements wherein they 
are depreciated over the primary period of the lease or the useful life of assets whichever is lower.

		  iii)	 Intangible assets are depreciated @ 25% on Written Down Value method.

		  iv)	 Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of lease.

	 f)	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes 
or duties collected on behalf of the government.

		  The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

		  i)	 Film production services

			   Revenue from processing / printing of cinematographic films is recognised upon completion of the related processing / printing. 
Revenue from processing of digital content is recognised using the proportionate completion method. Use of the 
proportionate completion method requires the Company to estimate the efforts expended to date as a proportion of 
the total efforts to be expended. Efforts expended have been used to measure progress towards completion, as there 
is a direct relationship between efforts expended and contracted output.

			   Sale of traded goods is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership are passed on to the customer, which 
generally coincides with the dispatch of goods.

			   Income from equipment / facility rental is recognised over the period of the relevant agreement / arrangement.

		  ii)	 Theatrical exhibition and related income

			   Sale of tickets - Revenue from theatrical exhibition is recognised on the date of the exhibition of the films and 
comprises proceeds from sale of tickets, gross of entertainment tax. As the Company is the primary obligor with 
respect to exhibition activities, the share of distributors in these proceeds is separately disclosed as distributors’ share. 
Amount of entertainment tax is shown as a reduction from revenue
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			   Sale of food and beverages - Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised upon sale and delivery at the 
counter.

			   Advertisement / sponsorship revenue - Revenue from advertisements, sponsorship and events is recognised on 
the date of the exhibition of the advertisement / event, over the period of the contract or on completion of the 
Company’s obligations, as applicable.

		  iii)	 Film production, distribution and related income

			   Film production and related income - Revenue from sale of content / motion pictures is accounted for on the date 
of agreement to assign / sell the rights in the concerned motion picture / content or on the date of release of the 
content / motion picture, whichever is later.

			   Income from film distribution activity - In case of distribution rights of motion pictures / content, revenue is recognised 
on the date of release / exhibition. Revenue from other rights such as satellite rights, overseas rights, music rights, 
video rights, etc. is recognised on the date when the rights are made available to the assignee for exploitation. 
Revenue from sale of VCDs / DVDs, etc is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership are passed on to the 
customer, which generally coincides with the dispatch of the products.

		  iv)	 Interest income / income from film financing

			   Interest income, including from film / content related production financing, is recognised on a time proportion basis 
at the rate implicit in the transaction.

		  v)	 Dividend income

			   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is unconditional at the balance sheet date.

		  vi)	 Marketing rights

			   Amounts received in lieu of future marketing rights sale are recognised as income in the year of entering into the 
contract.

		  vii)	 Trading Income

			   Sales are recognised when significant risk and reward of ownership of goods have passed to the buyer which coincides 
with delivery and are recorded net of trade discounts, rebates and Value added tax.

	 g)	 Income Taxes

		  Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. In which case 
the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

		  i)	 Current tax

			   Provision for current income-tax is recognised in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income-tax Act, 1961, and 
rules made thereunder, and recorded at the end of each reporting period based on the amount expected to be paid 
to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdiction. Current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle the assets and the liability on a net basis.

		  ii)	 Deferred tax

			   The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying the tax rate and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of brought 
forward losses and unabsorbed depreciaion under tax laws, are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of their 
realisation, supported by convincing evidence, However such deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent there 
is adequate deferred tax liability reversing out in future periods. Deferred tax Assets on account of other timing 
differences are recognised, only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realisation. At each Balance Sheet 
date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed to obtain reassurance as to realisation.

		  iii)	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

			   Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. MAT Credit 
Entitlement is reconised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period, which is the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried 
forward. Such assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written 
down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period.
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	 h)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

		  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted into Indian currency at the 
appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. The resultant gain or loss, except to the extent 
it relates to long term monetary items, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such gain or loss relating to long 
term monetary items for financing acquisition of depreciable capital assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such 
asset and depreciated over its remaining useful life.Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of 
the year, are converted into Indian currency at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the Balance 
Sheet. The resultant gain or loss, except to the extent it relates to long term monetary items, is charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. Such gain or loss relating to long term monetary items for financing acquisition of depreciable capital 
assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such asset and depreciated over its remaining useful life.

		  Provident fund contribution for employees and contribution towards employee’s pension scheme for all employees is a 
defined contribution scheme. There are no other obligations, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

		  Gratuity

		  The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

		  The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

		  Net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense 
in the statement of profit and loss:

		  -	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements; and

		  -	 Net interest expense or income.

		  Compensated Absences

		  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit. 
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

		  The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee 
benefit for measurement purpose. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation 
using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance 
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

	 j)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

		  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. These are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the financial statements.

		  Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when economic inflow is probable.

	 k)	 Earnings Per Share

		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the 
Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable 
tax thereto for the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, provided the number of shares to be issued is material.
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	 l)	 Statement of Cash Flows

		  i)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

			   For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
stamp in hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

		  ii)	 Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit for the period is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

	 m)	 Leases

		  The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement.

		  Where the Company is lessee

		  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

	 n)	 Investments

		  Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term 
investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried 
at cost, However, provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the 
investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

	 o)	 Borrowing Costs

		  Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

	 p)	 Financial instruments

		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

		  Initial Recognition

		  The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables 
which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial 
recognition.

		  Subsequent measurement

	 (i)	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

		  A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 (ii)	 Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

		  A financial asset is subsequently measured at the FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved 
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

	 (iii)	  Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

		  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through statement of 
profit and loss.
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	 (iv)	 Investments in subsidiaries

		  Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the 
carrying value of all of its Investments in subsidiaries recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP 
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Investment in subsidiaries.

	 (v)	 Financial Liabilities

		  Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments.

		  Derecognition of financial instruments

		  The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire 
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part 
of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires.

		  Impairment of Financial Assets

		  The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not 
fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured 
at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount 
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case 
those are measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss 
in the statement of profit or loss.

2.3	 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

	 The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

	 a)	 Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment / intangible assets

		  Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking 
into account estimated residual value. The estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets are reviewed annually in 
order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives 
and residual values are based on the Companys historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated 
technological changes and other related matters. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are 
significant changes from previous estimates.

	 b)	 Recoverability of trade receivable

		  Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision 
against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the period of overdues, the amount and timing of 
anticipated future payments and the probability of default.

	 c)	 Provisions

		  Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of 
resources resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing 
of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances. 
The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and 
circumstances.

	 d)	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations

		  The measurement of defined benefit and other post-employment benefits obligations are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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 Note 4 : Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Particulars   Face 
Value 

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Nos.  Amount  Nos.  Amount 
Investments carried at Cost, fully paid up
(A) Equity Investments in Subsidiary Companies (Unquoted)

Global MediaWorks (UK) Limited £ 1  10,000  0.85  10,000  0.85 
Global MediaWorks (USA) Inc. (formerly known as Reliance MediaWorks (USA) Inc.) $100  200  0.92  200  0.92 
Reliance MediaWorks (Netherlands) B.V. ¤ 100  180  1.04  180  1.04 
Reliance MediaWorks Financial Services Private Limited 10  105,010,000  1,050.10  105,010,000  1,050.10 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments  (2.81)  (2.81)
Total (A)  1,050.10  1,050.10 

(B) Investment in Partnership Firm (Unquoted)
HPE / Adlabs (Limited Partnership)  199.93  199.93 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments  (199.93)  (199.93)
Total (B) - -
Grand Total (A+B)  1,050.10  1,050.10 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Book Value  Book Value 

A. The carrying value of unquoted investments are as below:

Subsidiaries:

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments  1,052.91  1,052.91 

Aggregate Amount of Impairment in value of Investments  2.81  2.81 

Name of the partner and share in profits (%)

Reliance MediaWorks Limited 50% 50%

Hyde Park Entertainment Inc (US) 50% 50%

Total Capital of the firm  437.74  437.74 

Note 5 : Investments

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 
 Current  Non 

Current 
 Current  Non 

Current 
At Cost, Unquoted, & fully paid up
Investment in Government Securities - Unquoted
National savings certificate  -    1.00  -    1.00 
Investment In Mutual Fund Units At FVTPL - Quoted 
Units of Reliance Liqiuidity - Growth Option  175.30  -  19.05  -   

 175.30  1.00  19.05  1.00 

Particulars  Market 
Value 

 Book 
Value 

 Market 
Value 

 Book  
Value 

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments  175.30  175.30  19.05  19.05 
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments -  1.00  -    1.00 
Aggregate Amount of Impairment in value of Investments - -  -    -   
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Note 6 : Loans

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Current Non 

Current 
Current Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Loan to Others 461.00 15.76 14.46 -   
(Unsecured, considered doubtful) 
Loans to Related parties (Refer note no. 31) 4,313.50 9.86 4,313.50 9.86 
Loans to Others 10.00 -   132.77 -   
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (4,323.50) (9.86) (4,446.27) (9.86)

461.00 15.76 14.46 -   
Note 7 : Other Financial Assets

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Current Non 

Current 
Current Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 
Security Deposits * 0.94 2.13 -   
Bank Deposit With Original Maturity of More Than 12 Months  
Interest Accrued  on Bank Deposits 1.85 - 1.14 -   
Interest Accrued  on Other Loan  3.81 - -   -   

6.60 -   3.27 -   

Note 8 : Non Current / Current Other Assets

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Current Non 

Current 
Current Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 
Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation)  
Nil (March 31, 2018: Nil) 

- 49.86 -   98.87 

Advance entertainment tax paid under protest - 44.42 -   44.42 
Balances with government authorities 115.88 122.07 -   
Other receivables (Refer Note no. 26) 7.56 7.12 -   
Sundry advances -   2.42 -   

123.44 94.28 131.61 143.29 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Note 9 : Trade Receivables

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Trade Receivables  0.60  6.98 

(Unsecured, considered doubtful) 

Trade Receivables 121.81  259.10 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts  (121.81)  (259.10)

0.60 6.98
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Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Note 10 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on Hand  0.04  0.01 

Balances with Banks 

In Current Accounts  8.46  4.66 

 8.50  4.66 

Note 11 :Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Bank Deposits With Original Maturity of More Than 3 Months But Less Than 12 Months 

	 Fixed deposit  18.77  145.38 

	 Margin Money deposit *  89.80  89.80 

	 (*Margin money deposits are under bank lien) 

 108.57  235.18 

Note 12 : Equity Share Capital

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Number  Amount Number  Amount 

Authorised 

Equity Shares of ` 5/- each  480,000,000  2,400.00  480,000,000  2,400.00 

Preference shares ` 5/- each  6,020,000,000  30,100.00  6,020,000,000  30,100.00 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up capital  32,500.00  32,500.00 

Equity Shares of ` 5/- each fully paid up  193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

966.04 966.04 

Notes : 

(a) 	 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Number  Amount Number  Amount 

Equity shares 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year   193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

Shares issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

(b) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding

Equity Shares

Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited  62,199,483 32.19%  -    -   

Ariel Trading Private Limited  57,961,764 30.00%  -    -   

Indian Agri Services Private Limited  56,044,964 29.01%  -    -   

Reliance Land Private Limited  -    -    124,414,132 64.39%

Edico Ventures Private Limited  -    -    57,961,764 30.00%



Reliance MediaWorks Limited

35

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019		

(Currency : ` in millions)

(c) 	 Rights, preference and restrictions attached to the equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 5 per share. Each equity shareholder is entitled to 
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends, if any, in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed, if any by the 
Board of the Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.	

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.												         

Note 13 : Other Equity

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  2,182.67  2,182.67 

Add : Amount transfer during the year                  -   -

Balance at the end         2,182.67          2,182.67 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  627.19  627.19 

Less : Amount transfer during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end  627.19  627.19 

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  119.50  119.50 

Add : Amount transfer during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end  119.50  119.50 

Securities Premium

Balance as per last Balance sheet  9,803.72  9,803.72 

Equity component reclassified from liabilities  -    -   

Balance at the end  9,803.72  9,803.72 

Retained Earnings

Balance as per last Balance sheet  (31,627.19)  (29,741.34)

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year  (1,387.58)  (1,885.85)

Balance at the end  (33,014.78)  (31,627.19)

 (20,281.69)  (18,894.11)

Note 14 : Borrowings

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 
 Current  Non 

Current 
 Current  Non 

Current 
Preference Shares
Series I 
10% Non Convertible Non cumulative redeemable preference shares  
` 5 each fully paid up 

 -    5,016.62  -    4,721.62 

Series II 
11.5% Non Convertible Non cumulative redeemable preference shares  
` 5 each fully paid up 

 -    12,805.11  -    11,609.11 

Inter-corporate deposit (unsecured)  110.00  2,376.10  110.00  3,904.00 
 110.00  20,197.82  110.00  20,234.72 
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Terms of borrowings

Preference share

Series I

“Preference shares shall be redeemed at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e. each Preference shares shall be 
redeemed at a premium calculated in a manner that gives the holder an yield of 10% p.a. (till date of redemption ) on issue price 
of  ` 1,000 (including  premium of ` 995) after deduction of dividend, if any declared during the tenure. However, the premium 
on redemption will be paid only to the original subscribers or to the transferees if the transfers have been previously approved by 
the Company. 

Further early redemption at the option of holder of Preference shares can be done, at issue price plus yield as mentioned above, at 
any  time after the date of allotment by giving not less than two months advance notice to the Company. Early redemption at the 
option of  Company at the applicable redemption price can be done, any time after the date of allotment by giving not less than 30 
days notice to  the Preference share holder.”							    

Series II

Preference shares shall be redeemable at the end of 5 years from the date of allotment and shall be redeemed at a premium equal 
to an amount calculated to yield a return of 11.50% p.a. with effect from the date of allotment up to the date of redemption on 
issue price of ` 5/-					  

Inter-Corporate Deposit (Unsecured)

Non Current

Unsecured loan is repayable within Three years from their respective drawal and carry an interest rate ranging from 11.25% to  
12% p.a. as at 31 March 2019.

Current

Unsecured loan is repayable within Six to Twelve months from their respective drawal and carry an interest rate ranging from  
12% p.a. as at 31 March 2019.

Note 15 : Provisions

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Current  Non 
Current 

 Current  Non 
Current 

Provision for Compensated Absences  0.15  0.08  0.13  0.07 

 0.15  0.08  0.13  0.07 

Particulars March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 
Note 16 : Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises (Refer note no. 25)  -    0.86 
Total Outstanding dues of Others  172.35  185.85 

 172.35  186.70 

Note 17 : Other Financial Liabilities - Current
Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowing 692.76  312.81 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  65.05  13.81 

757.81  326.62 

Note 18 : Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable  26.04  35.69 
Advances From Customers  68.07  68.07 
Income earned in advance  21.33  21.33 
Employee Payables  7.50  7.02 

 122.94  132.11 
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Particulars  Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 Year Ended  
March 31, 2018

Note 19 : Revenue from Operations
Film / content production, distribution and related services                 -                 2.00 
Others
Sales of precious metal  -    2.73 
Rental Income  22.54  28.76 

 22.54  31.49 
				  
Note 20 : Other Income
Interest Income On -
	 Bank Deposits  5.68  7.53 

	 Loans & advances  5.11  0.26 
	 Income Tax Refund*  14.26  11.27 
Fair Value Gain on financial instrument through FVTPL  12.57  0.05 
Income Tax Refund*  22.28  35.87 
Gain on Sale of Assets held for Disposal  547.84  -   
Provision Written Back - Advances 260.06  -   
Net gain on sale of Current Investments  2.68  3.03 
Bad debts recovered / provisions written-back  0.40  100.01 
Sundry balances written-back (net)  4.00  -   
Miscellaneous Income  1.49  3.43 

876.36  161.46 
(* Refund pertaining to prior period)

Note 21 : Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries,Wages and Bonus  7.33  12.75 
Contributions to Provident and Other Fund  0.20  0.38 
Compensated absences  0.04  0.17 
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 26)  (0.52)  (0.44)
Staff Welfare Expenses  0.20  0.87 

 7.25  13.73 

Note 22 : Other expenses
Rent  48.27  91.42 
Bank charges 0.01  0.09 
Advertisement Expenses  0.04  0.03 
Rates and Taxes 28.50  8.80 
Travelling and conveyance  0.54  2.04 
Audit fees (Refer details below) 0.05  0.05 
Legal and professional fees  12.92  12.54 
Directors sitting fees  0.25  0.51 
Miscellaneous expenses  0.33  2.49 
Loss on sale of investment in Equity shares  -    82.21 
Electricity charges  0.17  0.35 
Printing and communication  2.41  1.87 
Bad Debts / Advances Written off 260.06  -   
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Particulars  Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 Year Ended  
March 31, 2018

Facility maintenance charges  0.16  0.16 
Repairs and maintenance  0.13  -   
- 	 Others	 1.54  1.11 

355.37  203.66 
Payment to auditor

As auditor:
Audit fee 0.05  0.05 
Others charges -  -   

0.05  0.05 
Note 23 : Finance Costs
Interest on Inter Corporate deposits to others -  331.52 
Interest on other loans 432.61  0.10 
Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Loans advanced to third party) -  35.54 
Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Series I Preference shares)  295.00  295.00 
Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Series II Preference shares)  1,196.00  1,196.00 

 1,923.61  1,858.16 
Note 24 : Earning per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 
Profit / (Loss) for Basic & Diluted earning per share (a)  (1,387.49)  (1,885.54)
Weighted average number of equity shares (b) 193,208,831 193,208,831 
Face value per share (`)  5.00  5.00 
Basic/Diluted earning per share (`) (a/b)  (7.18)  (9.76)

Note 25 : Dues to micro and small suppliers

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED), certain disclosures are required to be made 
relating to micro and small enterprise. On the basis of the information and records information available with the Company, the 
following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the MSME.

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Principal amount due to any supplier as at the year end Nil 0.86   

Interest due on the principal amount unpaid at the year end to any supplier -   -   

Amount of Interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED, along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
the accounting year	

-   -   

Payment made to the enterprises beyond appointed date under section 16 of MSME -   -   

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment, which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period, but without adding the 
interest specified under MSMED

-   -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and

-   -   

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest due as above is actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the 
MSMED.	

-   -   
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Note 26 : Disclosure under Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” 

(a)	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 i) 	 Provident Fund

	 ii) 	 Employer’s contribution to Employees’ State Insurance Scheme

		  The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year:

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Contribution to Provident Fund  0.20  0.38 

(b)	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined 
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to 
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation 
for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

Particulars Gratuity (funded)
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

I. Change in defined benefit obligation
1. Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year  0.49  1.03 
2. Service cost   

a. 	 Current service cost  0.03  0.06 
b. 	 Past service cost -  -   

3. Interest expenses  0.03  0.06 
4. Cash flows   

a. 	 Benefit payments from plan  -    (1.13)
b. 	 Benefit payments from employer  -    -   
c. 	 Settlement payments from plan  -    -   
d.	 Settlement payments from employer  -    -   

5. Remeasurements - actuarial (gains)/ losses  0.13  0.45 
6. Transfer In /Out   

a. 	 Transfer In  -    -   
b. 	 Transfer out  -    -   

7. Defined benefit obligation at end of year  0.68  0.49 
II. Change in fair value of plan assets   

1. Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  11.27  11.63 
2. Expected return on plan assets  0.87  0.83 
3. Cash flows   

a. 	 Total employer contributions   
	 (i) 	 Employer contributions  -    -   
	 (ii) 	 Employer direct benefit payments  -    -   
	 (iii) 	 Employer direct settlement payments  -    -   
b. 	 Participant contributions  -    -   
c. 	 Benefit payments from plan assets  -    (1.13)
d. 	 Benefit payments from employer  -    -   
e. 	 Settlement payments from plan assets  -    -   
f. 	 Settlement payments from employer  -    -   

4. Remeasurements     
a. 	 Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)  (0.02)  (0.06)

5. Transfer In /Out   
a. 	 Transfer In  -    -   
b. 	 Transfer out  -    -   

6. Fair value of plan assets at end of year  12.13  11.27 
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Particulars Gratuity (funded)
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

III. Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet   

1. Present value of funded defined benefit obligations  0.68  0.49 

2. Fair value of plan assets  (12.13)  (11.27)

3. Funded status  -    -   

4. Effect of asset ceiling  3.89  3.67 

5. Net defined benefit liability (asset) (Non Current)  (7.56)  (7.12)

IV. Amount recognized in statement of other comprehensive income outside 
profit and loss account

Opening amount recognised in OCI  0.50  0.18 

Remeasurements during the period due to:

Changes in financial assumptions  0.01  (0.02)

Experience adjustments  0.12  0.47 

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets  0.02  0.06 

Adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling  (0.06)  (0.19)

Total Re-measurements (OCI)  0.58  0.50 

V. Employer Expense (P&L)

a. Current Service Cost  0.03  0.06 

b. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)  (0.56)  (0.50)

c. Total P&L Expenses  (0.52)  (0.44)

VI. Net defined benefit liability (asset) reconciliation

1. Net defined benefit liability (asset)  (7.12)  (7.00)

2. Defined benefit cost included in P&L  (0.52)  (0.44)

3. Total remeasurements included in OCI  0.09  0.31 

4 Net defined benefit liability (asset) as of end of year  (7.56)  (7.12)

VII. Reconciliation of OCI (Re-measurement)

1. Recognised in OCI at the beginning of year  0.50  0.18 

2. Recognised in OCI during the year  0.09  0.31 

3. Recognised in OCI at the end of the year  0.58  0.50 

VIII. Significant actuarial assumptions

1. Discount rate Current Year 7.55% 7.85%

2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%

3. Salary increase rate 7.00% 7.00%

4 Pre-retirement mortality  Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate 

5 Disability  Nil  Nil 
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Note 27 : Fair values

Fair value measurement include the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. The 
carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and 
the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation 
of the fair value. 									       

Fair value measurements

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 are as follows :

Particulars At amortised 
costs

At fair value 
through profit 

and loss

At fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Financial assets

Investments  -  176.30  -  176.30  176.30 

Trade Receivables  0.60  -  -  0.60  0.60 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  8.50  -  -  8.50  8.50 

Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents above

 108.57  -  -  108.57  108.57 

Loans  461.00  -  -  461.00  461.00 

Other Financial Assets  6.60  -  -  6.60  6.60 

 585.27  176.30  -  761.57  761.57 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  20,307.82  -  -  20,307.82  20,307.82 

Trade Payables  172.35  -  -  172.35  172.35 

Other Financial Liabilities 757.81  -  - 757.81 757.81

 21,237.98  -  -  21,237.98  21,237.98 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 are as follows :

Particulars At amortised 
costs

At fair value 
through profit 

and loss

At fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Financial assets

Investments  -  20.05  -  20.05  20.05 

Trade Receivables  6.98  -  -  6.98  6.98 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  4.66  -  -  4.66  4.66 

Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents above

 235.18  -  -  235.18  235.18 

Loans  14.46  -  -  14.46  14.46 

Other Financial Assets  3.27  -  -  3.27  3.27 

 264.56  20.05  -  284.61  284.61 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  20,344.72  -  -  20,344.72  20,344.72 

Trade Payables  186.70  -  -  186.70  186.70 

Other Financial Liabilities  326.62  -  -  326.62  326.62 

 20,858.05  -  -  20,858.05  20,858.05 
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Note 28 - Fair value Hierarchy

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a 
reasonable approximation of fair value.  

(a) 	 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2019			 

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price 

in active 
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

 Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Investments  175.30  1.00  -    176.30 

(b) 	 Assets and liabilities for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2019

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price  

in active  
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  -    -    0.60  0.60 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    8.50  8.50 
Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above  -    -    108.57  108.57 
Loans  -    -    461.00  461.00 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    6.60  6.60 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    20,307.82  20,307.82 
Trade Payables  -    -    172.35  172.35 
Other Financial Liabilities  -    -   757.81 757.81

(a) 	 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2018

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price  

in active  
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Investments  19.05  1.00  -    20.05 

(b) 	 Assets and liabilities for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2018				  

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price  

in active  
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  -    -    6.98  6.98 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    4.66  4.66 
Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above  -    -    235.18  235.18 
Loans  -    -    14.46  14.46 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    3.27  3.27 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    20,344.72  20,344.72 
Trade Payables  -    -    186.70  186.70 
Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    326.62  326.62 

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.				  
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	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter 
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as 
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 
is included in level 2.

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 
This is the case for Financial assets other than Investment, Trade payable and Other Financial liabilities included in level 3.

	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value
	 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
	 • 	 the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
	 •	 the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Note 29 : Financial Risk Management
The Company’s risk management is carried out by a treasury department (company treasury) under policies approved by board of 
directors. Treasury team identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the company’s operating units. The 
Management of the Company  provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, 
such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments 
of excess liquidity.
(i) 	 Credit Risk
	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations. 
	 The Company is engaged in production of Television Content/Web Series
	 The Company does not have any significant exposure to credit risk.
(ii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents & Other Financial Asset
	 The Company held cash and cash equivalents & other financial assets with credit worthy banks aggregating ` 117.07 million as 

at March 31, 2019 & ` 239.85 millions as at March 31, 2018 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial 
institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

(iii) 	Market Risk
	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 

affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to any significant 
currency risk and equity price risk.

	 (a) 	 Interest Rate Risk
		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk.
		  Liquidity Risk - Table
		  The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into 

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings 110.00  20,197.82  20,307.82 

Trade payables  172.35  -    172.35 

Other financial liabilities 757.81  -   757.81

Total Non-Derivatives 1,040.16  20,197.82  21,237.98 

As at March 31, 2018 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings  110.00  20,234.72  20,344.72 

Trade payables  186.70  -    186.70 

Other financial liabilities  326.62  -    326.62 

Total Non-Derivatives  623.32  20,234.72  20,858.05 

Note 30: Capital Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is 
to maximise the shareholder value.
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Note 31 : Related Party Disclosure
As per Ind AS-24 “ Related Party Disclosure” the Company’s related parties and transactions with them in the ordinary course 
of business are disclosed below:
(A) 	 Parties where controlling the Company
	 Holding Company
	 Reliance Land Private Limited	(upto March 31, 2018)
	 Major Investor
	 Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
	 Ariel Trading Private Limited  (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
	 Indian Agri Services Private Limited  (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
	 Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
(B) 	 Subsidiaries (including Fellow subsidiaries)
	 Global MediaWorks (UK) Limited (‘GMW-UK’)
	 Global MediaWorks (USA) Inc. (formerly known as Reliance MediaWorks (USA) Inc.) (‘RMW-US’)
	 Reliance MediaWorks Financial Services Private Limited (w.e.f. March 10, 2017) (‘RMFSL’)
	 Reliance Media Theatre Limited
	 Big Synergy Media Limited
(C)	 Associate
	 Prime Focus Limited
(D) 	Enterprise over which Company has significant influence
	 HPE / Adlabs LP
(E) 	 Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
	 Satish Kadakia – CFO & Whole-time Director (w.e.f.  July 25, 2018) 
	 Priya Walawalkar – Company Secretary (w.e.f. February 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018)
	 Mangala Savla – Company Secretary (w.e.f. July 25, 2018)
	 Details of transactions and closing balance :		

Particulars March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018
Major 

Investor
Subsidiaries 
(Incl. fellow 
subsidiaries)

Joint 
Venture

Associate Key 
Managerial 

Persons
A. Transactions during the year :          

Rental Income
Prime Focus Limited 22.54  -    -    -    -   

(28.76)  -    -    -    -   
Interest expense          

Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited 155.68  -    -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   

Reliance Land Private Limited -  -    -    -    -   
(15.30)  -    -    -    -   

Managerial Remuneration          
Satish Kadakia  -    -    -    -   2.52
   -    -    -    -   (2.58)
Mangala Savla  -    -    -    -   0.44

   -    -    -    -   -
Priya Walwalkar  -    -    -    -   0.06

 -    -    -    -   (0.9)
Inter Corporate deposits received from the 
Company

         

Reliance Land Private Limited  -    -    -    -    -   
   (2,334.00)  -    -    -    -   

Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited 461  -    -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   

Inter Corporate deposits repaid to the 
Company

         

Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited 2000  -    -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   
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Particulars March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018
Major 

Investor
Subsidiaries 
(Incl. fellow 
subsidiaries)

Joint 
Venture

Associate Key 
Managerial 

Persons
Guarantees Outstanding          

RMW-US  -    483.53  -    -    -   
   -    (483.53)  -    -    -   

Reimbursement of Expenses - Received          
RMW-US  -    28.15  -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   
RMTL  -    1.92  -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   

Particulars March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018
Major 

Investor
Subsidiaries 
(Incl. fellow 
subsidiaries)

Joint 
Venture

Associate Key 
Managerial 

Persons
B. Balances at the year end :          

Inter corporate Deposit payable to the 
Company (Including interest)

         

Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited 363.11  -    -    -    -   
   -    -    -    -    -   

Trade Receivable
Adlabs Films (UK) Ltd. 30.15  -    -    -    -   
  (30.15)  -    -    -    -   
Adlabs Films (USA) Inc 11.08  -    -    -    -   
  (11.08)  -    -    -    -   
Reliance Mediawork (USA) Inc 30.46  -    -    -    -   
  (30.46)    -    -    -    -   
Big Senergy Media Limited 3.60  -    -    -    -   

(3.60)  -    -    -    -   
Advance Given          

Global Mediaworks UK  -    1,080.99  -    -    -   
 -    (1,080.99)  -    -    -   

Reliance Mediawork (Netherland) BV  -    19.96  -    -    -   
 -    (19.96)  -    -    -   

Reliance Mediawork USA Inc  -    3,222.41  -    -    -   
 -    (3,222.41)  -    -    -   

Provision for Doubtful Avances  -    4,323.36  -    -    -   
   -    (4,323.36)  -    -    -   

Investment 
Global Mediaworks UK - Equity Shares  -    0.85  -    -    -   

 -    (0.85)  -    -    -   
Reliance Mediawork USA Inc - Equity 
Shares

 -    0.92  -    -    -   
 -    (0.92)  -    -    -   

Reliance Mediawork (Netherland) BV - 
Equity Shares

 1.04 
 (1.04)

Reliance Mediaworks Financial Services 
Private Limited

 1,050.10 

 (1,050.10)
HPE Adlabs LLP USA - in Capital  199.93 

 (199.93)
Provision for Dimunition in Value of 
Investment

 2.81  199.93 
 (2.81)  (199.93)
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Note 32: Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

	 (a) 	 Contingent Liabilities:

On account of March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Central excise
Disputed central excise demand pending with the Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

 50.46  50.46 

Value added tax
Disputed value added tax demand pending for various states  228.08  267.49 
Service tax 
Disputed Service Tax demand pending with the Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

 1,000.25  1,000.25 

Income tax
Disputed liability in respect tax deduction at source,  matter is pending with 
Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals) 

 12.41  34.81 

The Company has received notice of demand under Section 156 of Income Tax Act, 
1961 for A.Y. 2011-12 on completion of the assessment towards Tax liability in 
respect of interest u/s 244A.

6.54  6.54 

Entertainment tax
In respect of certain multiplexes, the Company has made an application for availing 
exemption under the relevant Act retrospectively from the date of commencement 
of the operations of the said multiplex and the application is pending approval

 1.29  1.29 

In respect of certain multiplexes, the Company is in dispute with the entertainment 
tax authorities regarding eligibility for availing exemption under the relevant Act

 113.20  113.20 

The Company shall be liable to pay the entertainment tax in the event that the 
multiplexes do not continue operations for a period of 10 years from the respective 
dates from which they commenced their operations

 -  - 

The Company has engaged the services of a Contractor for the purpose of deploying 
personnel at its cinemas. During the tenure of the contract, the Company has paid the 
Contractor, amounts payable towards employers contribution to provident fund (PF) 
amounting to ` 29.42 on a regular basis. The Company has learnt that the Contractor 
has failed to deposit appropriate amounts for employee and employer contribution 
amounting to approximately ` 58.84 with the PF authorities and the Company 
apprehends that some portion of the aforesaid amount which was supposed to be 
deposited in the individual accounts of the Personnel by the Contractor may have 
actually been mis-appropriated by the Contractor. The Company has filed a criminal 
complaint against the Contractor and the matter is currently under investigation. 
Some employees have raised a claim against the Company for amounts due to them 
in a District Consumer Forum, where they have received favourable judgements, 
however the Company is confident of reversal of the said judgement in the higher 
forums, where it has preferred an appeal and stay has been granted till further order.

 -  - 

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts *  1,221.97  750.59 
Guarantees
Guarantee given to a Service providers in respect of Subsidiary Companies 483.53  483.53 
Note:
a) 	 The Company is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business and does not expect the outcome 

of these proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial conditions, results of operations or cash flows.	
b) 	 The amounts are excluding penalty and interest if any that would be levied at the time of final conclusion.
(b) 	 Capital and Other Commitments
	 (i) 	 Company has issued letter of financial support to some of its wholly owned foreign subsidiaries.
	 (ii) 	 Series I : Preference shares shall be redeemed at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment. Each Preference 

share shall be redeemed at a premium calculated in a manner that gives the holder an yield of 10% p.a. (till date of 
redemption) on issue price of `1,000 (including premium of ` 995) after deduction of dividend, if declared during 
the tenure. However, the premium on redemption will be paid only to the original subscribers or to the transferees 
if the transfers have been previously approved by the Company. Yield on preference shares of ` 2,066.62 (current 
year increase of ` 295.00) as at the balance sheet date will be paid as premium at the time of redemption.

	 (iii) 	 Series II: Preference shares issued during the previous year shall be redeemable at the end of 5 years from the 
date of allotment and shall be redeemed at a premium equal to an amount calculated to yield a return of 11.50% 
p.a. with effect from date of allotment up to the date of redemption on issue price of ` 5.00. Yield on preference 
shares of ` 2,405.17 (current year increase of ` 1,196.00) as at the balance sheet date will be paid as premium 
at the time of redemption.
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Note 33

As per Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes, a deferred tax asset shall be recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. In the absence 
probable future profits, deferred tax asset is not recognised during the year.						    

Note 34

Segment information in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 108 ‘Operating Segments’ is provided on the basis of 
consolidated financial statements of the Company, and therefore, separate segment information based on standalone financial 
statements is not provided.						    

Note 35: Leases

Disclosure as required under Ind AS – 17 “Leases” is given below:

(a) 	 The Company has entered into cancellable / non-cancellable leasing agreement for office, residential and warehouse premises 
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

(b) 	 Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as under: 				  

	 A. 	 Operating Leases

		  The Company was obligated under non-cancellable operating leases primarily for studios and office premises which are 
renewable thereafter as per the term of the respective agreements. 

Particulars Lease Rental 
Debited to 

Statement of 
Profit and Loss 

(Cancellable and 
Non cancellable)

Future Minimum Lease Rentals Period of Lease

Less Than 1 
Year

Between 1 to 
5 Years

More than 
5 Years

Office Premises 1.73 1.49 7.46 13.42  August 15, 2027 

		  Note: During the year ended March 31, 2019 the Company has transferred the Studio to the Prime Focus Limited, hence 
no future lease rent liability will arise in against the Studio. (Refer Note 39)

B. 	 Finance Leases

	 During the previous years, the finance lease and operating lease obligations were transferred to Cinema Ventures Private Limited 
pursuant to transfer of exhibition business, hence the Company  is no longer liable for payment of future lease payments, until 
CVPL has defaulted on payment and demand is made on the Company. Currently, there are no claims against the said leases.

Note 36.  Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures

31 March 2019
Trade & Other Receivables Trade & Other Payables

Type Of Currency  Currency Balance  
(in millions)

Amount in `  Type Of 
Currency 

 Currency Balance 
(in millions) 

Amount in `

 USD 0.49 34.00  USD 8.45 586.44
 GBP 0.07 6.27  GBP 11.42 1,030.64

40.27 1,617.08

31 March 2018
Trade & Other Receivables Trade & Other Payables

Type Of Currency  Currency Balance  
(in millions)

Amount in `  Type Of 
Currency 

 Currency Balance 
(in millions) 

Amount in `

 USD  54.01  3,233.86  USD  -    -   
 GBP  10.94  1,111.14  GBP  -    -   
 EURO  0.24  20.23  EURO  -    0.08 

 4,365.23  0.08 



48

Reliance MediaWorks Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019		

(Currency : ` in millions)

Note 37: Disclosure under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has given following unsecured Inter-corporate loans during the years -

Name Rate of  
Interest

Payment terms March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Reliance Venture Asset Management Company 
Limited

11.25 On demand 461

Mohan Umrotkar	 On demand -  50.00 
Total 461  50.00 

Note: The Loan has been provided for business purpose.						    

Note 38 : The Company’s net worth has eroded, however, having regard to financial support from its promoters and further  
restructuring exercise being implemented the financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company is a going 
concern and that no adjustments are required to the carrying value of assets and liabilities.		 			 

Note 39 : On July 2, 2014, the Company had entered into a binding term sheet with Prime Focus Limited to sell the film and media 
services business for a net consideration of ` 3,500 after considering assignment of debt of ` 2,000. Subsequently, the Company 
entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (‘BTA’) with Prime Focus Limited for the sale of the business and the business was 
transferred effective closing of April 7, 2015. 

During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Company had completed the transfer of business to Prime Focus Limited. As agreed 
Company had transferred net assets of ` 6,872.57. As agreed Prime Focus Limited had issued its shares amounting to ` 3,500 at 
the price of ` 52 per share to the Company. Pending receipt of approval, the Company had not transferred assets pertaining to 
Studio business. Accordingly it had also not assigned debts of ` 2,000 to Prime Focus Limited. The loss of ` 1,334.52 on transfer 
of Film & Media services over and above ` 2,038.05 provided in year ended March 31, 2015 had been disclosed as an exceptional 
item. Subsequently the Company has received NOC from Film City. The Company has sent documents for execution to Prime Focus 
for their review and will be executed once approval is received. With transfer of Studio, liability of  2,000  will also get transferred.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has received the approval for the same and accordingly Studio alongwith 
liability of ` 2000 transferred to Prime Focus Limited on 25th February, 2019.

The amounts of assets and liability pertaining to the film and media services business are:	

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Carrying amount of assets relating to the discontinued operations  -    1,452.16 

Carrying amount of liabilities relating to the discontinued operations (Excluding value of 
loan of ` 2,000 to be assigned) 

 -    -   

Net assets/(liabilities) relating to the discontinued operations  -    1,452.16 

Note 40 : Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s 
classification / disclosure.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To The Members of 
Reliance MediaWorks Limited
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Reliance MediaWorks Limited (the “Company”) 
and its Subsidiary Companies (the Company together with 
its Subsidiary constitutes “the Group”) which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements”)
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group as at March 31, 2019, consolidated loss, consolidated 
total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements.
Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information 
included in Director’s report and shareholders information 
included in the annual report but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is material misstatement therein; we are required to report 
that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of 
the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 
Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Group.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
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that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities and business activities 
within Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements of three Subsidiary 
Companies whose financial statements reflect total assets of  
` 10,289.77 million as at 31st March, 2019, total revenue of  
` 606.14 million for the year ended on that date. These financial 
statements and related other financial information have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to 
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these Subsidiaries, our report in 
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors.
Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the 

extent applicable, that:
	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act.

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the Group Companies, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Group and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in Annexure; and

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

		  i)	 The Group has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations as at March 31, 2019 on its financial 
position in its financial statements as referred to 
in Note 28 to the financial statements.

		  ii)	 Based upon the assessment made by the 
Company, there are no long-term contracts 
resulting in any material foreseeable losses.

		  iii)	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Group.

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi
Proprietor
Membership No. 039784
UDIN: 19039784AAABAE2212

Place	:	Mumbai
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 
143(3)(i)  of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting (‘Financial Controls’) of Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
(“the Company”) and its Subsidiary Company (the Company 
together with its Subsidiary constitutes “the Group”) in conjunction 
with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
Financial Controls based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Financial Controls 
are established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness.  
Our audit of Financial Controls includes obtaining an understanding 
of Financial Controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
A company’s Financial Controls is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s Financial Controls includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and Directors 
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of Financial Controls, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the Financial Controls to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the Financial Controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company and its Subsidiary companies have, 
in all material respects, an adequate Financial Controls system 
and such Financial Controls are operating effectively as at 31st 
March, 2019, based on the Financial Controls criteria established 
by each Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.
Other Matter
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the financial controls 
over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 1 Subsidiary 
company  which is based on the corresponding reports of other 
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi
Proprietor
Membership No. 039784
UDIN: 19039784AAABAE2212

Place	:	Mumbai
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)
Note As at 

March 31, 2019
 As at  

March 31, 2018
ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  8.73  10.18 
(b) Goodwill 984.17  36.33 
(c) Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture 4  9,506.40  4,638.65 
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5  1.00  1.00 
(ii) Loans 6  15.76  -   
(iii) Other Financial Assets 7  138.16  100.71 

(e) Deferred Tax Assets 8  1.89  5.18 
(f) Other Non Current Assets 9  99.01  154.90 

 10,755.13  4,946.95 
2 Current Assets

(a) Inventories 10  10.78  4.57 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5  193.94  64.00 
(ii) Trade Receivables 11  37.30  75.59 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  445.25  42.06 
(iv) Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above 13  130.04  253.39 
(v) Loans 6  691.89  201.30 
(vi) Other Financial Assets 7  12.92  9.21 

(c) Other Current Assets 9 204.35  221.85 
 1,726.47  871.97 

(d) Assets classified as held for disposal / distribution 42  -    1,452.16 
TOTAL ASSETS  12,481.61  7,271.08 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 14  966.04  966.04 
(b) Other Equity 15  (25,711.51)  (24,761.67)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  (24,745.47)  (23,795.63)
Non-controlling interests  121.69  130.03 
Total Equity  (24,623.79)  (23,665.60)

Liabilities
1 Non current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 33,246.24  28,387.05 

(b) Provisions 17  2.53  3.52 
 28,723.27  28,390.57 

2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16  110.00  110.00 
(ii) Trade Payables 18  851.50  876.10 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19  2,720.64  1,350.34 

(b) Provisions 17  0.15  0.12 
(c) Other Current Liabilities 20  174.32  209.55 

 3,856.62  2,546.11 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  12,481.61  7,271.08 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 48

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)
Note Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 21  678.80  599.44 
Other Income 22  653.60  111.56 
TOTAL  1,332.40  711.00 
Expenses
Cost of Production 23  458.10  449.28 
Purchases of Stock In Trade  9.76  5.77 
Changes in Inventories of Stock In Trade 24  0.06  0.02 
Employee Benefit Expenses 25  57.21  53.77 
Depreciation 3  1.71  1.68 
Other Expenses 26 435.19  604.85 
Finance Costs 27  1,929.68  2,880.45 
TOTAL  2,447.94  3,995.82 
Profit / (loss) before tax for the year  (1,559.31)  (3,284.82)
Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations before share of profit/
(loss) from Joint Venture and Associate

 (1,559.31)  (3,284.82)

Share of profit/(loss) from Joint Venture  -    -   
Share of profit/(loss) from Associate  (310.70)  (143.54)
Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations before tax  (1,870.01)  (3,428.36)
Tax Expenses
 - Current Tax  27.03  9.03 
 - Deferred Tax  3.30  0.42 
 - Income tax of earlier years  -    0.89 

 30.33  10.34 
Profit / (loss) from continuing operations after tax  (1,900.35)  (3,438.70)
Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations  -    -   
Profit / (loss) for the year  (1,900.35)  (3,438.70)
Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
 - Remeasurement of defined benefit plans : Gains/(Loss)  0.51  (0.29)
 - Income tax relating to the above  (0.16)  (0.01)

 0.35  (0.30)
Total Comprehensive Income  (1,900.00)  (3,439.00)
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to -
Equity holders of the parent  (1,924.25)  (3,444.70)
Non-controlling interests  24.25  5.70 
Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of ` 5/- each) 
 - Basic and Diluted 28  (9.96)  (17.83)
Earnings per Equity Share from Continuing operations  
(Face value of ` 5/- each) 
 - Basic and Diluted  (9.96)  (17.83)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 48
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(Currency : ` in millions)
 For the  

year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

A. Cash flow from Operating activities:- 
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax  (1,559.31)  (3,284.82)
Adjustment for :  -   
Depreciation  1.71  1.69 
Sundry balances written-off  -    -   
Provision for doubtful debts / advances/ provision written back (264.46)  (100.01)
Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (net)  -    -   
Loss / (Gain) on sale of Investment in Equity Shares  0.39  82.21 
Interest income  (39.40)  (91.38)
Gain on sale of Investment in Preference Shares  -    -   
Gain on sale of Current Investments (net)  (2.68)  (3.03)
Gain on Disposal of Assets held for sale  (547.84)
Provision for Gratuity  (1.00)  0.90 
Dividend income  (0.22)  (1.17)
Fair Value Gain on financial instrument through FVTPL  (13.69)  (0.56)
Interest on taxes paid  (0.63)  -   
Interest expense  1,933.23  2,884.00 
Operating profits before working capital changes (493.91)  (512.17)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories  (6.21)  (1.15)
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets & other Assets 186.97  (243.72)
Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities & other Liabilities 221.59  1,076.45 
Cash generated from operation (91.56)  319.41 
Interest on taxes paid  -    -   
Foreign Exchange Gain /(Loss)   (18.63)  (0.09)
Taxes paid (net of refunds)   31.00  91.17 
Net cash flow / (used in) Operating activities (A)  (79.19)  410.48 

B. Cash flow from Investing activities:- 
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment  (0.00)  -   
Sale / (Purchase) of current Investments  (125.91)  (16.45)
Sale / (Purchase) of non current investments in shares of subsidiary companies, 
associates and joint venture 

 -    -   

Sale of investment - in shares of others  -    -   
Proceeds from disposal of Assets held for sale  2,000.00 
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment  -    (0.03)
(Purchase)/Sale of investments (net)  (0.45)  -   
(Investment)/Redemption in Fixed Deposit with Banks (net)  (57.48)  163.54 
Dividend received  0.07  0.27 
Loans given  7.99  (4.45)
Loans given to subsidiaries  (514.30)  -   
Interest income  30.06  36.79 
Net cash flow / (used in) Investing activities (B)   1,339.99  179.68 

Consolidated Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(Currency : ` in millions)
 For the  

year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

 C Cash flow from Financing activities 
Proceeds from Equity issue  -    -   
Proceeds / (repayment) from / to non current borrowings  (154.90)  1,404.00 
Proceeds / (repayment) from / to current borrowings  -    (240.00)
Inter corporate loan received / (repaid)  520.50  (717.64)
Loan from related parties  -    109.39 
Interest Expense  (1,223.20)  (1,172.94)
Net cash flow / (used in) from Financing activities (C)   (857.60)  (617.19)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent - (A + B + C)  403.19  (27.03)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year    42.06  68.77 
Less : Transfer of Cash along with other assets to undertakings  transferred  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (Refer note below)  445.25  42.06 

Notes:
1)	 Cash and cash equivalents at year end comprises: 
	 - Cash on hand  0.35  0.36 
	 - Balance with Banks in Current accounts 

444.90  41.70 
445.25  42.06 

 The above Statement of cash flow  should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 48 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 30, 2019

Consolidated Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)

1.	 Group Information
	 The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Reliance MediaWorks Limited (the Company) and its 

subsidiaries, associates and joint venture (collectively, the Group) for the year ended March 31,  2018. The Company was 
incorporated in 1987 as a Private Limited Company and is currently a Public Limited Company. 

	 The equity shares of the company were listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited till May 6, 2014. 
The Group was primarily engaged in theatrical exhibition, film production services and film production and distribution and 
related services. the Group currently owns properties for letting out for theatrical exhibitions. Further during the year, the Group 
traded in precious metals and earned rental income from letting out studios on rent.

2.	 Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies
	 2.1	 Basis of Preparation and Presentation
		  a)	 Compliance with Ind AS

			   The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 
(the Act) read with relevant rules.

		  b)	 Historical cost convention
			   These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and 

liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).
		  c)	 Basis of consolidation
			   The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 

March 31, 2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement 
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the 
Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

			   -	 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 
investee)

			   -	 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

			   -	 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

			   Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

			   -	 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

			   -	 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

			   -	 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

			   -	 The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 
voting rights holders

			   The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains 
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

			   Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments 
are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure 
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

			   The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date 
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is 
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information 
as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial 
information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)

			   The list of Subsidiaries, Associate & Joint Venture included in consolidation is mentioned below:

Sr. 
No

Name of the Entity Country of 
incorporation

% of Equity Interest
As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018
Subsidiaries
1 Reliance MediaWorks Theatres Limited* India 100% 100%
2 Global MediaWorks (UK) Limited UK 100% 100%
3 Global MediaWorks (USA) Inc (formerly known as 

Reliance MediaWorks (USA) Inc)
USA 100% 100%

4 Reliance MediaWorks (Netherlands) B.V. The Netherland 100% 100%
5 Reliiance MediaWorks Financial Services Private 

Limited (RMFSL)
India 100% 100%

6 Big Synergy Media Limited* India 51% 51%

			   The list of step down subsidiaries considered in these consolidated financial statements with percentage shareholding 
is summarised below:

Sr. 
No

Name of the Entity Country of 
incorporation

% of Equity Interest

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Subsidiaries

1 Global Cinemas Entertainment LLC (formerly 
known as BIG Cinemas Entertainment LLC) 

USA 100% 100%

2 Global Cinemas Entertainment (DE) LLC (formerly 
known as BIG Cinemas Entertainment (DE) LLC) 

USA 100% 100%

3 BIG Cinemas Laurel LLC   USA 100% 100%

4 BIG Cinemas Norwalk LLC  USA 100% 100%

5 Global Cinemas Galaxy LLC (formerly known as 
BIG Cinemas Galaxy LLC) 

USA 100% 100%

6 BIG Cinemas Sahil LLC  USA 97% 97%

7 BIG Cinemas IMC LLC USA 100% 100%

8 Big Pictures USA Inc.$ USA 100% 100%

9 Reliance Media Works VFX Inc. USA 100% 100%

Joint Ventures

Divyashakti Marketing Private Limited India 50% 50%

Associates

Prime Focus Limited @ India 35.08% 35.11%

			   $ - This subsidiary does not have any transactions since the date of incorporation.				  

			   @ -  The Group acquired interest in Prime Focus Limited with effect from January 20, 2015			 

			   Consolidation procedure:

			   (i)	 Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its 
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and 
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.			 

			   (ii)	 Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of 
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.	

			   (iii)	 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in 
assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment 
that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary 
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.		
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			   Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of 
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring 
their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.									       

			   A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
			   If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:							     
			   - 	 Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary				  
			   - 	 Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests					   
			   - 	 Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity					  
			   - 	 Recognises the fair value of the consideration received						    
			   - 	 Recognises the fair value of any investment retained						    
			   - 	 Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss							     

			   - 	 Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, 
as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

		  d)	 Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees  which is also its functional currency.			 
						    

	 2.2	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies					  

		  a)	 Business combinations and goodwill
			   Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as 

the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

			   At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition 
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation 
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are 
measured at the basis indicated below:	

			   - 	 Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 
respectively.

			   - 	 Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share – based 
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire 
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

			   - 	 Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.	

			   - 	 Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the 
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

			   When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification 
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree

			   If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition 
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.	

			   Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind 
AS 109 Financial  instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the 
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate 
Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and 
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

			   Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 
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transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities 
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If 
the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration 
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no 
clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing 
the same through OCI.

			   After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of 
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other 
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

			   A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently  
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in 
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

			   Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative 
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

			   If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the 
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are 
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition 
date.	

		  b)	 Investment in associates and joint ventures
			   An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate 

in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies. 	
			   A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 

have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control.

			   The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to 
determine control over the subsidiaries. 	

			   The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the 
equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount 
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture 
since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

			   The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint 
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has 
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of 
any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from 
transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the 
associate or joint venture.

			   If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or 
joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment 
in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses 
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity 
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not 
recognised.

			   The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 
statement of profit and loss. The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same 
reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with 
those of the Group.	
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			   After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment 
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there 
is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the 
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or 
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ 
in the statement of profit or loss. 	

			   Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and 
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate 
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and 
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.	

		  c)	 Current versus non-current classification
			   The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 

treated as current when it is:
			   - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
			   - Held primarily for the purpose of trading
			   - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
			   - Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period
			   All other assets are classified as non-current.
			   A liability is current when:
			   - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
			   - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
			   - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
			   - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period
			   The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
			   The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 

equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
			   Group companies
			   On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange 

prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense 
items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences 
arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of 
OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

			   Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

			   Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions are treated as assets and liabilities 
of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are 
non-monetary items already expressed in the functional currency of the parent and no further translation differences 
occur.

			   Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, 
viz., April 01, 2016. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences 
that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.

	 	 d)	 Fair Value Measurement

			   The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

			   ●	 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

			   ●	 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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			   The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a 
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

			   A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

			   All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

			   - 	 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

			   - 	 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

			   - 	 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

			   For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

		  e)	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
			   i)	 An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
			   ii)	 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured at :

				    -	� its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates.

				    -	� any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

				    -	� the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it 
is located, the obligation which is to be incurred either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of 
having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that 
period.

			   iii)	 After initial recognition, PPE  is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

			   iv)	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

	 	 f)	 Intangible Assets

			   Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Costs relating to software licenses, 
which are acquired, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective individual useful life 
which generally do not exceed 5 years.

		  g)	 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment and Amortization of Intangible Assets
			   i)	 Tangible Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes 

(other than those recoverable from tax authorities) and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition / 
construction and installation of the fixed assets for bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended 
use.

			   ii)	 Depreciation on fixed assets is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under Straight Line Method, at the rates 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except in the case of leasehold improvements wherein 
they are depreciated over the primary period of the lease or the useful life of assets whichever is lower.

			   iii)	 Intangible assets are depreciated @ 25% on Written Down Value method.

			   iv)	  Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of lease.

	 	 h)	 Revenue recognition

			   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
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value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

			   The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

			   i)	 Film production services

				    Revenue from processing / printing of cinematographic films is recognised upon completion of the related 
processing / printing.

				    Revenue from processing of digital content is recognised using the proportionate completion method. Use of the 
proportionate completion method requires the Group to estimate the efforts expended to date as a proportion 
of the total efforts to be expended. Efforts expended have been used to measure progress towards completion, 
as there is a direct relationship between efforts expended and contracted output.

				    Sale of traded goods is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership are passed on to the customer, 
which generally coincides with the dispatch of goods.

				    Income from equipment / facility rental is recognised over the period of the relevant agreement / arrangement.

			   ii)	 Theatrical exhibition and related income

				    Sale of tickets - Revenue from theatrical exhibition is recognised on the date of the exhibition of the films and 
comprises proceeds from sale of tickets, gross of entertainment tax. As the Group is the primary obligor with 
respect to exhibition activities, the share of distributors in these proceeds is separately disclosed as distributors’ 
share.

				    Amount of entertainment tax is shown as a reduction from revenue

				    Sale of food and beverages - Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised upon sale and delivery at 
the counter.

				    Advertisement / sponsorship revenue - Revenue from advertisements, sponsorship and events is recognised on 
the date of the exhibition of the advertisement / event, over the period of the contract or on completion of the 
Group’s obligations, as applicable.

			   iii)	 Film production, distribution and related income

				    Film production and related income - Revenue from sale of content / motion pictures is accounted for on the 
date of agreement to assign / sell the rights in the concerned motion picture / content or on the date of release 
of the content / motion picture, whichever is later.

				    Income from film distribution activity - In case of distribution rights of motion pictures / content, revenue is 
recognised on the date of release / exhibition. Revenue from other rights such as satellite rights, overseas rights, 
music rights, video rights, etc. is recognised on the date when the rights are made available to the assignee for 
exploitation. Revenue from sale of VCDs / DVDs, etc is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership are 
passed on to the customer, which generally coincides with the dispatch of the products.

			   iv)	 Interest income / income from film financing

				    Interest income, including from film / content related production financing, is recognised on a time proportion 
basis at the rate implicit in the transaction.

			   v)	 Dividend income

				    Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is unconditional at the balance sheet date.

			   vi)	 Marketing rights

				    Amounts received in lieu of future marketing rights sale are recognised as income in the year of entering into 
the contract.

			   vii)	 Trading Income

				    Sales are recognised when significant risk and reward of ownership of goods have passed to the buyer which 
coincides with delivery and are recorded net of trade discounts, rebates and Value added tax or Goods and 
Service Tax.

		  i)	 Income Taxes
			   Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. In 
which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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		  	 i)	 Current tax
				    Provision for current income-tax is recognised in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income-tax Act, 

1961, and rules made thereunder, and recorded at the end of each reporting period based on the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in  accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective 
jurisdiction. Curent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set-off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the assets and the liability on a net basis.

			   ii)	 Deferred tax
				    The deferred tax asset and deferred tax libility is calculated by applying the tax rate and tax laws that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account 
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciaion under tax laws, are recognised only if there is a virtual 
certainty of their realisation, supported by convincing evidence, However such deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent there is adequate deferred tax liability reversing out in future periods. Deferred tax Assets on 
account of other timing differences are recognised, only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its 
realisation. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed to obtain 
reassurance as to realisation.

			   iii)	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
				    Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. MAT 

Credit Entitlement is reconised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 
Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, which is the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. Such assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT 
credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

		  j)	 Foreign Currency Transactions
			   Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted into Indian 
currency at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. The resultant gain or loss, 
except to the extent it relates to long term monetary items, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such gain 
or loss relating to long term monetary items for financing acquisition of depreciable capital assets, is adjusted to the 
acquisition cost of such asset and depreciated over its remaining useful life.	Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted into Indian currency at the appropriate rates of exchange 
prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. The resultant gain or loss, except to the extent it relates to long term 
monetary items, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such gain or loss relating to long term monetary 
items for financing acquisition of depreciable capital assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such asset and 
depreciated over its remaining useful life.

		  k)	 Employee Benefits Expense
			   Provident Fund
			   Provident fund contribution for employees and contribution towards employee’s pension scheme for all employees is 

a defined contribution scheme. There are no other obligations, other than the contribution payable to the respective 
funds.

			   Gratuity
			   The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

			   The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated 
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have 
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

			   Net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an 
expense in the statement of profit and loss:

			   -	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

			   -	 Net interest expense or income.

			   Compensated Absences

			   Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short term employee 
benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as 
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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			   The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee 
benefit for measurement purpose. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. the Group presents the leave as a current liability in 
the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after 
the reporting date.

		  l)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

			   Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present 
value. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

			   A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present 
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the financial statements.

			   Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when economic inflow is probable.

		  m)	 Earnings Per Share

			   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining 
the Group’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable 
tax thereto for the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, provided the number of shares to be issued is material.

		  n)	 Statement of Cash Flows

			   i)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

		  		  For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
stamp in hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

			   ii)	 Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit for the period is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts 
or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

		  o)	 Leases

			   The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

			   Where the Group is lessee

			   Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

		  p)	 Inventories

			   Program / Film rights are stated at lower of unamortized cost or net realizable value.

			   -	 Cost of televised events including programs are fully expensed on telecast, basis expected pattern of realization 
of economic benefits.

			   -	 Film rights with limitation on number of telecast during the license period are amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the license period or telecast basis whichever is earlier. Other film rights are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the license period or up to 5 years from the date of purchase, whichever is shorter.

		  	 -	 Programs pending completion are carried at cost. Cost comprises production cost and direct overheads.

			   -	 Film rights pending commencement include content where rights are yet to commence. These are carried at 
cost and amortised after commencement of rights.
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		  q)	 Investments

			   Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long 
term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments 
are carried at cost, However, provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the 
value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

		  r)	 Borrowing Costs

			   Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised 
as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

		  s)	 Financial instruments

			   A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

		  	 Initial Recognition

			   The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade 
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added 
to the fair value on initial recognition.

		  	 Subsequent measurement

			   (i)	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

				    A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

			   (ii)	 Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

				    A financial asset is subsequently measured at the FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding.

			   (iii)	 Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

				    A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through 
statement of profit and loss.

			   (iv)	 Investments in subsidiaries

				    Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. 

			   (v)	 Financial Liabilities

				    Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and 
other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

			   	 Derecognition of financial instruments

				    the Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial 
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group’s balance sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

			   	 Impairment of Financial Assets

				    the Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing 
component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses 
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit losses 
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to 
be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.
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	 2.3	 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

		  The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

		  a)	 Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment / intangible  assets

			   Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after 
taking into account estimated residual value. The estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets are reviewed 
annually in order to determine the amount  of depreciation / amortisation  to be recorded during any reporting 
period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Groups historical experience with similar assets and take 
into account anticipated technological changes and other related matters. The depreciation / amortisation for future 
periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

		  b)	 Recoverability of trade receivable

			   Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a 
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered  include the period of overdues, the amount  and 
timing of anticipated future payments and the probability of default.

		  c)	 Provisions

			   Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes  probable  that there will be a future outflow 
of resources resulting from past operations or events and the amount  of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The 
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances.

		  d)	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations

			   The measurement of defined benefit and other post-employment benefits obligations are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in 
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Note 4 : Investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures

 Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
 Nos.  Amount  Nos.  Amount

Investments carried at Cost, fully paid up
(A)	 Investment in Associate (Quoted)

Prime Focus Limited 104,939,361  9,492.20 104,939,361  4,624.90
Total (A)  9,492.20  4,624.90

(B)	 Investment in Partnership Firm (Unquoted)
Gold Adlabs (55%)  14.20  13.75
HPE / Adlabs (Limited Partnership)  199.93  199.93
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments  (199.93)  (199.93)
Total (B)  14.20  13.75
Grand Total (A+B)  9,506.40  4,638.65

A.	 The carrying value of quoted investments are as below:  March  
31, 2019 

 March  
31, 2018

Associate
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments  9,492.20  4,624.90
Aggregate fair value of quoted investments 6,962.73 8,835.89

B.	 Details of Investment in Partnership Firm
i)	 Gold Adlabs 
Name of the partner and share in profits (%)

Reliance MediaWorks Theatre Limited 55% 55%
Goldfield Habitat Private Limited 45% 45%
Total Capital of the firm (`) 21.93 17.40

ii)	 HPE / Adlabs LP
Name of the partner and share in profits (%)

Reliance MediaWorks Limited 50% 50%
Hyde Park Entertainment Inc 50% 50%
Total Capital of the firm (`) 437.74 437.74

Note 5 : Investments

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

At Cost, Unquoted, & fully paid up
Investment in Government Securities - Unquoted
	 National savings certificate  -    1.00  -    1.00 
Other Investments 
	 Osian Art Fund Contemporary  1.60  -    1.60  -   
	 Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Investment  (1.60)  -    (1.60)  -   
Investment In Mutual Fund Units At FVTPL - Quoted 
	 Units of Reliance Liquidity - Growth Option  175.30  -    19.05  -   
	 Templetation India SIP Growth  -    -    -    -   
	 Birla Sunlife Bond Fund Retail Growth  2.33  -    2.21  -   
	 Birla Sunlife Dynamic Bond Fund Retail Plan Growth  6.70  -    6.25  -   
	 BSL Medium Term Plan-Q Dividend  2.69  -    2.63  -   
	 Franklin India Short Term Income Plan-Growth  6.93  -    6.36  -   
	 Icici Prudential Corporate Bond Fund-QD  -    -    7.63  -   
	 Birla Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - Retail Plan (D)  -    -    10.02  -   
	 Birla Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - Retail Plan YD  -    -    4.75  -   
	 UTI Dynamic Bond Fund  -    -    5.09  -   

 193.94  1.00  64.00  1.00 

Market Value  Book Value 
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 193.94 193.94
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments  1.60  1.60 
Aggregate Amount of Impairment in value of Investments  (1.60)  1.60 



70

Reliance MediaWorks Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency : ` in millions)

Note 6 : Loans

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Loans to Related parties  -    -    -   

Joint venture (Refer note no. 35)  28.22  -    26.22  -   

Loan to Others  663.63  15.76  175.08  -   

Loan to employees  0.04  -    0.01  -   

(Unsecured, considered doubtful) 

Advance  -    -    109.63  -   

Loans to Others  132.77  -    185.27  -   

Less : Provision for doubtful advances  (132.77)  -    (294.90)  -   

 691.89  15.76  201.30  -   

Note 7 : Other Financial Assets

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Security Deposits   1.81  15.46  2.42  15.55 

Bank Deposit With Original Maturity of More Than 12 Months   -    122.70  -    84.48 

Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits  3.58  -    1.62  0.68 

Interest Accrued on Inter corporate deposits (Related parties)  3.73  -    5.18  -   

Interest Accrued on Other Loan   3.81  -   

(Unsecured, considered doubtful) 

Interest Accrued on Inter corporate deposits (others)  4.01  -    4.01  -   

Less :  Provision for doubtful advance  (4.01)  -    (4.01)  -   

 12.92  138.16  9.21  100.71 

Note 8 : Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

	 Fair valuation of financial instrument  -  -  -  -

	 Total Deferred tax liabilities  -  -

Deferred tax assets on account of :

	 Property plant & Equipment  -  2.66  -  3.75

	 Provisions   -  (0.77)  -  1.43

	 Total Deferred tax assets  -  1.89  -  5.18

Net Deferred Tax Assets  -  1.89  -  5.18
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Note 9 : Non Current / Current Other Assets

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation Nil) 
(March 31, 2018: Nil)

 -    54.57  -    110.48 

Advance entertainment tax paid under protest  -    44.42  -    44.42 

Balances with government authorities 165.94  0.03  171.96  -   

Prepaid expenses  0.83  -    2.68  -   

Other receivables (Refer Note no. 30)  7.56  -    7.12  -   

Advance to Vendors  -    -    0.40  -   

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received  30.01  -    39.69  -   

204.35  99.01  221.85  154.90 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Note 10 : Inventories

(Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Tapes & Batteries  	 (a)  -    0.06 

Project in Progress-  -    -   

Opening Balance  4.51  3.34 

Add/(less) : Transfer From/(to) Cost of Production (net)  6.27  1.17 

(b)  10.78  4.51 

Closing Balance	 (a+b)  10.78  4.57 

Note 11 : Trade Receivables

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Trade Receivables  37.30  75.59 

(Unsecured, considered doubtful) 

Trade Receivables  183.81  213.58 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts  (183.81)  (213.58)

 37.30  75.59 

Note 12 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on Hand  0.38  0.36 

Balances with Banks 

In Current Accounts  28.06  41.70 

Fixed Deposit with Bank Original Maturity of Less Than 3 Months  16.00  -   

Balance with Bank held as security against borrowings  400.80  -   

 445.25  42.06 
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Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Note 13 :Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Bank Deposits With Original Maturity of More Than 3 Months But Less Than 12 Months 

Fixed deposit  40.24  163.59 

Margin Money deposit *  89.80  89.80 

(*Margin money deposits are under bank lien) 

 130.04  253.39 

Note 14 : Share Capital

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Authorised 

Equity Shares of ` 5/- each  480,000,000  2,400.00  480,000,000  2,400.00 

Preference shares ` 5/- each 6,020,000,000  30,100.00 6,020,000,000  30,100.00 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up capital 

Equity Shares of ` 5/- each fully paid up  193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

 193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

Notes : 

(a) 	 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Amount  Number  Amount  Number 

Equity shares 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year   193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

Shares issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  193,208,831  966.04  193,208,831  966.04 

(b) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding 

No. of  
Shares held

% of  
Holding

Equity Shares

Reliance Land Private Limited  -    -    124,414,132 64.39%

Edico Ventures Private Limited  -    -    57,961,764 30.00%

Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited  62,199,483 32.19%  -    -   

Ariel Trading Private Limited  57,961,764 30.00%  -    -   

Indian Agri Services Private Limited  56,044,964 29.01%  -    -   

(c)	 Rights, preference and restrictions attached to the equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 5 per share. Each equity shareholder is entitled to 
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends, if any, in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed, if any by the 
Board of the Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.
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Note 15 : Other Equity

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Capital Reserve I

Balance as per last Balance sheet 3.39  3.39 

Add : Amount transfer during the year  -   

 3.39    3.39 

Capital Reserve II

Balance as per last Balance sheet  2,213.19  2,213.19 

Add / Less -

Balance at the end  2,213.19  2,213.19 

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  120.00  120.00 

Add : Amount transfer during the year  -    -   

Add / Less : Translation Difference  -    -   

Balance at the end  120.00  120.00 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  690.98  359.99 

Add / Less : movement due to exchange difference 974.41 330.99

Balance at the end 1,665.39  690.98 

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  121.19  121.19 

Add : Amount transfer during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end  121.19  121.19 

Securities Premium

Balance as per last Balance sheet  9,803.72  9,803.72 

Additions  -    -   

Balance at the end  9,803.72  9,803.72 

Retained Earnings

Balance as per last Balance sheet  (37,714.14)  (34,269.45)

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year  (1,924.25)  (3,444.70)

Balance at the end  (39,638.39)  (37,714.14)

25,711.51  (24,761.67)
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Note 16 : Borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current Non Current Current Non Current

Preference Shares
Series I 
10% Non Convertible Non cumulative redeemable preference 
shares Rs 5 each fully paid up

 -    5,016.62  -    4,721.62 

Series II 
11.5% Non Convertible Non cumulative redeemable preference 
shares Rs 5 each fully paid up

 -    12,805.11  -    11,609.11 

Non-Convertible Debentures (Secured)  6,124.52  -    6,242.52 
Inter-corporate deposit from related parties (unsecured)  6,868.40  -    1,822.40 
Inter-corporate deposit from others (unsecured)  110.00  2,431.60  110.00  3,991.41 

 110.00 33,246.24  110.00  28,387.05 
Terms of borrowings

Preference share

Series I

Preference shares shall be redeemed at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e. each Preference share shall be redeemed 
at a premium calculated in a manner that gives the holder an yield of 10% p.a. (till date of redemption) on issue price of  ` 1,000 
(including  premium of ` 995) after deduction of dividend, if any declared during the tenure. However, the premium on redemption 
will be paid only to the original subscribers or to the transferee if the transfers have been previously approved by the Company. 

Further early redemption at the option of holder of Preference shares can be done, at issue price plus yield as mentioned above, at 
any  time after the date of allotment by giving not less than two months advance notice to the Company. Early redemption at the 
option of  Company at the applicable redemption price can be done, any time after the date of allotment by giving not less than 30 
days notice to  the Preference share holder.

Series II

Preference shares shall be redeemable at the end of 5 years from the date of allotment and shall be redeemed at a premium equal 
to an amount calculated to yield a return of 11.50% p.a. with effect from the date of allotment up to the date of redemption on 
issue price of ` 5/-

Non-Convertible Debentures (Secured)

The Group had issued 6500 rated listed, redeemable non convertible debentures of face value of `1,000,000 each for cash at par 
aggregating `6500,000,000 on private placement basis on March 28, 2018 with five equal ISIN number. The Debentures were 
secured by pledge of all shares of Prime Focus Limited alongwith corporate guarantee by a promoter and are repayable after five 
years.

Inter-Corporate Deposit (Unsecured)

Non Current

Unsecured loan is repayable within Three years from their respective drawal and carry an interest rate ranging from 11.25% to 12% 
p.a. as at 31 March 2018.

Current

Unsecured loan is repayable within Six to Twelve months from their respective drawal and carry an interest rate ranging from 12% 
p.a. as at 31 March 2019.
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Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

Note 17 : Provisions

Provision for Compensated Absences  0.15  2.47  0.12  0.07 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 30)  -    0.06  -    3.45 

 0.15  2.53  0.12  3.52 

Note 18 : Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises 
(Refer note no. 29)

 -    -    0.86  -   

Total Outstanding dues of Others  851.50  -    875.24  -   

 851.50  -    876.10  -   

Note 19 : Other Financial Liabilities 

Current maturities of long-term debts  42.90  -    -    -   

Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowing 692.76  -    312.81  -   

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  1,984.98  -    1,037.52 

 2,720.64  -    1,350.34  -   

Note 20 : Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable  30.12  -    68.38  -   

Advances From Customers  71.98  -    71.73  -   

Book Overdraft  1.06  -    -    -   

Income earned in advance  21.33  -    21.33  -   

Employee Payables 14.55  -    13.26  -   

Other Liabilities  35.29  -    34.85  -   

174.32  -    209.55  -   
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Particulars  Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 Year Ended  
March 31, 2018

Note 21 : Revenue from Operations

Film / content production, distribution and related services  -    -   

Programme sales - Television Content/Web Series  641.25  561.87 

Others  -    -   

Sales of precious metal  9.57  5.46 

Rental Income  22.54  28.76 

Share of Profit from Investment in Partnership Firm  5.45  3.35 

 678.80  599.44 

Note 22 : Other Income
Interest Income On -
Bank Deposits  18.25  23.27 
Loans & advances  17.61  11.71 
Income Tax Refund*  14.26  23.15 
Fair Value Gain on financial instrument through FVTPL  13.69  0.61 
Income Tax Refund*  22.28  27.37 
Gain on sale of equity shares  -    0.30 
Gain on Sale of Assets held for Disposal  547.84  -   
Dividend Income  0.22  1.17 
Foreign exchange gain (net)  6.00  -   
Net gain on sale of Current Investments  2.68  3.03 
Bad debts recovered / provisions written-back  5.23  17.50 
Sundry balances written-back (net)  4.00  -   
Miscellaneous Income  1.56  3.45 
(* Refund pertaining to prior period)

 653.60  111.55 

Note 23 : Cost of Production
Equipment hire charges  46.33  64.78 
Set expenses  5.99  16.58 
Professional & technical fees  259.47  226.59 
Research expenses  15.25  5.14 
Production expenses  106.94  103.44 
Unit transportation  30.34  33.92 

 464.31  450.45 
Transfer to/(from) project in progress  (6.21)  (1.17)

 458.10  449.28 

Note 24 : Changes in Inventories of Stock in trade

Stock of Tapes & Batteries

Cost of Inventories at the beginning of the year 0.06  0.08 

Cost of Inventories at the end of the year  -    0.06 

 0.06  0.02 

(Increase)/Decrease in the Inventories  0.06  0.02 
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Particulars  Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 Year Ended  
March 31, 2018

Note 25 : Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  54.96  49.65 

Contributions to Provident and Other Fund  1.64  1.74 

Compensated absences  0.67  0.17 

Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 30)  (0.27)  1.25 

Staff Welfare Expenses  0.20  0.96 

 57.21  53.77 

Note 26 : Operating and Other expenses

Rent  60.28  103.74 

Bank charges  0.05  0.17 

Advertisement Expenses  0.04  1.15 

Rates and Taxes 28.62  24.26 

Travelling and conveyance  1.64  2.93 

Insurance  1.44  0.68 

Business promotion  3.02  1.68 

Audit fees  0.81  0.80 

Legal and professional fees  66.75  78.71 

Directors sitting fees  0.25  0.51 

Miscellaneous expenses 3.45  3.81 

Loss on foreign currency translations and transactions  0.13  377.18 

Electricity charges  1.06  1.53 

Printing and communication  3.31  2.40 

Sundry balances written-off  0.23  0.46 

Telephone expenses  1.04  1.23 

Facility maintenance charges  0.86  2.31 

Repairs and maintenance

- 	 Others	 1.75  1.29 

 435.19  604.85 

Note 27 : Finance Costs

Interest on term loans and debentures  -    8.19 

Interest on Inter Corporate deposits from others  -    331.52 

Interest on other loans 438.68  1,013.63 

Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Loans advanced to third party)  -    35.54 

Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Series I Preference shares)  295.00  295.00 

Interest Expense (Amortised cost of Series II Preference shares)  1,196.00  1,196.00 

 1,929.68  2,879.88 

Finance charges  -    0.57 

 1,929.68  2,880.45 
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Note 28 : Earning per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Profit / (Loss) for Basic & Diluted earning per share (a)  (1,924.25)  (3,444.70)

Weighted average number of equity shares (b)  193,208,831  193,208,831 

Face value per share (`)  5.00  5.00 

Basic/Diluted earning per share (`) (a/b)  (9.96)  (17.83)

Note 29 : Dues to micro and small suppliers

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED), certain disclosures are required to be made 
relating to micro and small enterprise. On the basis of the information and records available with the Group, the following disclosures 
are made for the amounts due to the MSME.

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Principal amount due to any supplier as at the year end  -    0.86 

Interest due on the principal amount unpaid at the year end to any supplier  -    -   

Amount of Interest paid by the Group in terms of section 16 of the MSMED, along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the 
accounting year

 -    -   

Payment made to the enterprises beyond appointed date under section 16 of MSMED  -    -   

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment, which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period, but without adding the 
interest specified under MSMED

 -    -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and

 -    -   

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest due as above is actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the 
MSMED.

 -    -   

Note 30 : Disclosure under Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” 

(a)	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 i) 	 Provident Fund

	 ii) 	 Employer’s contribution to Employees’ State Insurance Scheme

		  The Group has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year:

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Contribution to Provident Fund 3.55  1.63 

Contribution to ESIC 0.13  0.11 

(b)	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined 
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise 
to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The 
obligation for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.
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Particulars Gratuity (funded)
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

I. Change in defined benefit obligation
1. Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year  5.14  4.14 
2. Service cost   

a.	 Current service cost  0.41  0.52 
b.	 Past service cost  -    1.10 

3. Interest expenses  0.38  0.26 
4. Cash flows   

a.	 Benefit payments from plan  (2.88)  (1.24)
b.	 Benefit payments from employer  -    -   
c.	 Settlement payments from plan  -    -   
d.	 Settlement payments from employer  -    -   

5. Remeasurements - actuarial (gains)/ losses  (0.35)  0.36 
6. Transfer In /Out   

a.	 Transfer In  -    -   
b.	 Transfer out  -    -   

7. Defined benefit obligation at end of year  2.02  5.14 
II. Change in fair value of plan assets   

1. Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  12.48  12.48 
2. Expected return on plan assets  0.96  0.89 
3. Cash flows   

a.	 Total employer contributions   
	 (i)	 Employer contributions  3.42  0.47 
	 (ii)	 Employer direct benefit payments  -    -   
	 (iii)	 Employer direct settlement payments  -    -   
b.	 Participant contributions  -    -   
c.	 Benefit payments from plan assets  (2.88)  (1.24)
d.	 Benefit payments from employer  -    -   
e.	 Settlement payments from plan assets  -    -   
f.	 Settlement payments from employer  -    -   

4. Remeasurements   
a.	 Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)  0.10  (0.12)

5. Transfer In /Out   
a.	 Transfer In  -    -   
b.	 Transfer out  -    -   

6. Fair value of plan assets at end of year  14.09  12.48 
III. Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet   

1. Present value of funded defined benefit obligations  2.70  5.14 
2. Fair value of plan assets  (14.09)  (12.48)
3. Funded status  0.06  -   
4. Effect of asset ceiling  3.89  3.67 
5. Net defined benefit liability (asset) (Non Current)  (7.43)  (3.67)
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Particulars Gratuity (funded)
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

IV. Amount recognized in statement of other comprehensive income outside profit 
and loss account
Opening amount recognised in OCI 0.62 0.08

V. Employer Expense (P&L)
a. Current Service Cost  0.41  0.52 
b. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)  (0.30)  (0.37)
c. Past Service Cost  -    1.10 
d. Total P&L Expenses  0.11  1.25 

VI. Net defined benefit liability (asset) reconciliation
1. Net defined benefit liability (asset)  (3.67)  (4.74)
2. Defined benefit cost included in P&L  0.11  1.25 
3. Total remeasurements included in OCI  (0.51)  0.29 
4 Employer contributions  (3.42)  (0.48)
5 Net defined benefit liability (asset) as of end of year  (7.50)  (3.67)

VII. Reconciliation of OCI (Re-measurement)
1. Recognised in OCI at the beginning of year  0.38  0.08 
2. Recognised in OCI during the year  (0.51)  0.29 
3. Recognised in OCI at the end of the year  (0.13)  0.38 

VIII. Sensitivity analysis - DBO end of Period
1 Discount rate +100 basis points  (0.07)  4.34 
2 Discount rate -100 basis points  0.07  5.02 
3 Salary Increase Rate +1%  0.07  4.86 
4 Salary Increase Rate -1%  (0.06)  4.46 
5 Attrition Rate +1%  (0.00)  4.60 
6 Attrition Rate -1%  0.00  4.71 

IX. Significant actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate Current Year 6.76%-7.5% 7.5%-7.85%
2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.5%-6.46% 6.46%-7.5%
3. Salary increase rate 10%-7% 7% -12%
4 Pre-retirement mortality  Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

Ultimate 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate 

5 Disability  Nil  Nil 
X. Expected cash flows for following year

1. Within the next 12 months  0.40  0.65 
2. Between 2 and 5 years  1.12  1.49 
3 Between 6 and 9 years  0.70  2.19 
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Note 31 : Fair values

Fair value measurement include the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. The 
carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and 
the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation 
of the fair value.

Fair value measurements

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Particulars At amortised 
costs

At fair value 
through profit 

and loss

at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Financial assets

Investments  -  194.94  -  194.94  194.94 

Trade Receivables  37.30  -  -  37.30  37.30 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  445.25  -  -  445.25  445.25 

Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents above

 130.04  -  -  130.04  130.04 

Loans  691.89  -  -  691.89  691.89 

Other Financial Assets  12.92  -  -  12.92  12.92 

 1,317.41  194.94  -  1,512.35  1,512.35 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 33,356.24  -  - 33,356.24 33,356.24

Trade Payables  851.50  -  -  851.50  851.50 

Other Financial Liabilities  2,720.64  -  -  2,720.64  2,720.64 

 36,928.38  -  -  36,928.38  36,928.38 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 are as follows :

Particulars At amortised 
costs

At fair value 
through profit 

and loss

at fair value 
through OCI

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Financial assets

Investments  -  65.00  -  65.00  65.00 

Trade Receivables  75.59  -  -  75.59  75.59 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  42.06  -  -  42.06  42.06 

Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents above

 253.39  -  -  253.39  253.39 

Loans  201.30  -  -  201.30  201.30 

Other Financial Assets  109.92  -  -  109.92  109.92 

 682.26  65.00  -  747.26  747.26 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  28,497.05  -  -  28,497.05  28,497.05 

Trade Payables  876.10  -  -  876.10  876.10 

Other Financial Liabilities  1,350.34  -  -  1,350.34  1,350.34 

 30,723.48  -  -  30,723.48  30,723.48 
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Note 32 : Fair value Hierarchy

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a 
reasonable approximation of fair value.

(a)	 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2018

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price 

in active 
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

 Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Investments  193.94  1.00  -    194.94 

(b)	 Assets and liabilities for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2018

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price  

in active  
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  -    -    37.30  37.30 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    445.25  445.25 
Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above  -    -    130.04  130.04 
Loans  -    -    691.89  691.89 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    12.92  12.92 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -   33,356.24 33,356.24
Trade Payables  -    -    851.50  851.50 
Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    2,720.64  2,720.64 

(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2018

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price 

in active 
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

 Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Investments  64.00  1.00  -    65.00 

(b) 	 Assets and liabilities for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2017

Particulars  Level 1 - 
Quoted price  

in active  
markets 

 Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 Total 

Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  -    -    75.59  75.59 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    42.06  42.06 
Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents above  -    -    253.39  253.39 
Loans  -    -    201.30  201.30 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    109.92  109.92 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    28,497.05  28,497.05 
Trade Payables  -    -    876.10  876.10 
Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,350.34  1,350.34 
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Note 33 : Financial Risk Management
The Group’s risk management is carried out by a treasury department (Group treasury) under policies approved by board of directors 
Treasury team identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Management 
of the Group  provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate 
risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.
(i) 	 Credit Risk
	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations.
	 The Group is engaged in production of Television Content/Web Series.
	 The Group does not have any significant exposure to credit risk.
(ii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents & Other Financial Asset
	 The Group held cash and cash equivalents & other financial assets with credit worthy banks aggregating ` 575.29 million and  

` 295.45 million as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial 
institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

(iii) 	Market Risk
	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will affect 

the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group is not exposed to any significant currency risk 
and equity price risk.

	 (a) 	 Interest Rate Risk
		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. The Group is not exposed to any interest rate risk.
		  Liquidity Risk - Table
		  The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into 

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings  110.00 1,822.40 1,932.50

Trade payables  851.50  -    851.50 

Other financial liabilities  -    -    -   

Total Non-Derivatives  961.50 1,822.40 2,783.90

As at March 31, 2018 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings  110.00  28,387.05  28,497.05 

Trade payables  876.10  -    876.10 

Other financial liabilities  1,350.34  -    1,350.34 

Total Non-Derivatives  2,336.44  28,387.05  30,723.48 

Note 34 : Capital Risk Management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity 
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise 
the shareholder value.
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Note 35 : Related Party Disclosure
As per Ind AS-24 “ Related Party Disclosure” the Group’s related parties and trasnsactions with them in the ordinary course 
of business are disclosed below :
(A) 	 Parties where control exists
	 Holding Companies
	 Reliance Land Private Limited (‘RLPL’) (upto March 31, 2018)
	 Major Investors
	 Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
	 Ariel Trading Private Limited  (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
	 Indian Agri Services Private Limited  (w.e.f. 01.04.2018)
Other related parties
(A)	 Subsidiaries (including Fellow Subsidiaries)
	 Global MediaWorks (UK) Limited (‘GMW-UK’)
	 Global MediaWorks (USA) Inc. (formerly known as Reliance MediaWorks (USA) Inc.) (‘RMW-US’)
	 Reliance MediaWorks Financial Services Private Limited (w.e.f. March 10, 2017) (‘RMFSL’)
	 Reliance Media Theatre Limited
	 Big Synergy Media Limited 
(B)	 Associates
	 Prime Focus Limited
(C)	 Joint Venture
	 Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited
(D)	 Enterprise over which Company has significant influence
	 HPE / Adlabs LP
	 Gold Adlabs
(E) 	 Significant Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel and their relative
	 Satish Kadakia – Whole-time Director (w.e.f.  June 22, 2015)
	 Priya Walawalkar – Company Secretary (w.e.f. February 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018)
	 Mangla Savla - Company Secretary (w.e.f. July 25, 2018)
	 Details of transactions and closing balance :

Particulars March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018
Holding 

Company
Enterprises 
over which 

company 
has 

significant 
influence/ 

associate

Joint 
Venture

Associate Key 
Managerial 

PersonsMajor 
Investor

A. Transactions during the year :          
Rental Income          

Prime Focus Limited  -    -    -    22.54  -   
   -    -    -    (28.76)  -   

Interest expense          
Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited 155.68  -    -    -    -   

   -    -    -    -    -   
Reliance Land Private Limited  -    -    -    -    -   

 (15.30)  -    -    -    -   
Managerial Remuneration          

Satish Kadakia  -    -    -    -    2.52 
   -    -    -    -    (2.58)

Priya Walawalkar  -    -    -    -   0.06
 -    -    -    -    (0.90)

Mangala Savla  -    -    -    -    0.44 
  - - - - -
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Particulars March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018
Holding 

Company
Enterprises 
over which 

company 
has 

significant 
influence/ 

associate

Joint 
Venture

Associate Key 
Managerial 

PersonsMajor 
Investor

Share of profit from partnership firm          
Gold Adlabs  -    5.45  -    -    -   

   -    (3.33)  -    -    -   
Drawings From Partnership firm          

Gold Adlabs -  5.00 - - -
  -  (7.00) - - -

Inter Corporate deposits received          
Reliance Land Private Limited  -    -    -    -    -   

   (2,334.00)  -    -    -    -   
Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited  2,461.00 - - - -

 -   - - - -
Inter Corporate deposits repaid          

Relaince Alpha Services Private Limited  2,000.00 - - - -
   -   - - - -

Inter Corporate deposite Given          
Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited - -  2.00 - -

- -  (4.45) - -

Particulars  March 31, 2019 & March 2018
 Holding 

Company 
 Subsidiaries 
(Incl. fellow 
subsidiaries) 

 Joint 
Venture 

 Associate  Key 
Managerial 

Persons Major 
Investor

B. Balances at the year end :          
Inter corporate Deposit payable to the 
Company (Including interest)

Reliance Alpha Services Private Limited 363.11 - - - -

ICD Given
Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited - - 28.22 - -

- - (26.22) - -
Inter Corporate Creditors

Prime Focus Limited  -    -    -    6.12  -   
- - -  (6.12) -

Investment 
Gold Adlabs (Partnership Firm) - -  14.20 - -

- -  (13.75) - -
Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited - - 32.90 - -

- - (32.90) - -
Interest Receivable
Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited - - 0.28 - -

- - (0.28) - -
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Note 37 : Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

	 (a)	 Contingent Liabilities:

On account of March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Central excise

Disputed central excise demand pending with the Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

 50.46  50.46 

Value added tax

Disputed value added tax demand pending for various states  228.08  267.49 

Service tax 

Disputed Service Tax demand pending with the Central Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

 1,000.25  1,000.25 

Income tax

Disputed liability in respect tax deduction at source,  matter is pending with 
Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals) 

 12.41  34.81 

The Company has received notice of demand under Section 156 of Income Tax Act, 
1961 for A.Y. 2011-12 on completion of the assessment towards Tax liability in 
respect of interest u/s 244A.

6.54  6.54 

Entertainment tax

In respect of certain multiplexes, the Company has made an application for availing 
exemption under the relevant Act retrospectively from the date of commencement 
of the operations of the said multiplex and the application is pending approval

 1.29  1.29 

In respect of certain multiplexes, the Company is in dispute with the entertainment 
tax authorities regarding eligibility for availing exemption under the relevant Act

 113.20  113.20 

The Company shall be liable to pay the entertainment tax in the event that the 
multiplexes do not continue operations for a period of 10 years from the respective 
dates from which they commenced their operations

 - 

The Company has engaged the services of a Contractor for the purpose of deploying 
personnel at its cinemas. During the tenure of the contract, the Company has paid the 
Contractor, amounts payable towards employers contribution to provident fund (PF) 
amounting to ` 29.42 on a regular basis. The Company has learnt that the Contractor 
has failed to deposit appropriate amounts for employee and employer contribution 
amounting to approximately `58.84 with the PF authorities and the Company 
apprehends that some portion of the aforesaid amount which was supposed to be 
deposited in the individual accounts of the Personnel by the Contractor may have 
actually been mis-appropriated by the Contractor. The Company has filed a criminal 
complaint against the Contractor and the matter is currently under investigation. 
Some employees have raised a claim against the Company for amounts due to them 
in a District Consumer Forum, where they have received favourable judgements, 
however the Company is confident of reversal of the said judgement in the higher 
forums, where it has preferred an appeal and stay has been granted till further order.

 - 

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts *  1,221.97  750.59 

Guarantees

Guarantee given to a Service providers in respect of Subsidiary Companies 483.53  483.53 

Contingent liabilities of Subsidiary companies

	 Note:

	 a)	 The Company is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business and does not expect the outcome 
of these proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial conditions, results of operations or cash flows.

	 b)	 The amounts are excluding penalty and interest if any that would be levied at the time of final conclusion.
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	 (b)	 Capital and Other Commitments

		  (i)	 Company has issued letter of financial support to some of its wholly owned foreign subsidiaries.

		  (ii)	 Series I : Preference shares shall be redeemed at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment. Each Preference 
shares shall be redeemed at a premium calculated in a manner that gives the holder an yield of 10% p.a. (till date 
of redemption) on issue price of `1,000 (including premium of `995) after deduction of dividend, if declared during 
the tenure. However, the premium on redemption will be paid only to the original subscribers or to the transferees if 
the transfers have been previously approved by the Company. Yield on preference shares of `2,066.62 (current year 
increase of `295.00) as at the balance sheet will be paid as premium at the time of redemption.

		  (iii)	 Series II : Preference shares issued during the previous year shall be redeemable at the end of 5 years from the date 
of allotment and shall be redeemed at a premium equal to an amount calculated to yield a return of 11.50% p.a. 
with effect from date of allotment up to the date of redemption on issue price of `5.00. Yield on preference shares 
of `2405.17 (current year increase of `1,196.00) as at the balance sheet will be paid as premium at the time of 
redemption.

Note 38 : Segment Information

The Group has disclosed business segment as the operating segment. The business of the Group is divided into four segments - film 
production services, theatrical exhibition, television / Film production and distribution and sales of precious metal. Segments have 
been identified taking into account the nature of the business, the differing risks and returns, the organisation structure and internal 
reporting system.

-	 Film production services operation primarily comprise of processing of raw exposed films, colour correction, editing, digital 
processing, equipment / facility rental, copying and printing of positive exhibitions prints and trading in raw film rolls.

-	 Theatrical exhibition operations comprise of single screen, multiplex/Imax cinema exhibition, range of activities / services 
offered at cinema centres including catering food and beverages.

-	 Television / film production and distribution comprises of production of television / film content which is produced / coproduced 
by the Group and includes advisory services in relation to the distribution and production of movies and television content.

-	 Sales of precious metal comprises of trading in precious metal.

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each 
segment as also the amounts allocable on a reasonable basis. Income and expenses which are not directly attributable to any 
business segment are shown as unallocated corporate income / expenses. Assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between 
the segments are shown as a part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively.
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Note 39 : Leases

Disclosure as required under Ind AS – 17 “Leases” is given below:

(a)	 The Group has entered into cancellable / non-cancellable leasing agreement for office, residential and warehouse premises 
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

(b)	 Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as under:

	 A.	 Operating Leases

		  The Group was obligated under non-cancellable operating leases primarily for studios and office premises which are 
renewable thereafter as per the term of the respective agreements.

Particulars Lease Rental 
Debited to 

Statement of Profit 
and Loss

Future Minimum Lease Rentals Period of Lease

Less Than 1 
Year

Between 1 to 
5 Years

More than 
5 Years

Studio & Office Premises	 1.73 1.49  7.46  13.42  August 15, 2027 

B.	 Finance Leases

	 During the previous years, the finance lease and operating lease obligations were transferred to Cinema Ventures Private Limited 
pursuant to transfer of exhibition business, hence the Group  is no longer liable for payment of future lease payments, until 
CVPL has defaulted on payment and demand is made on the Group. Currently, there are no claims against the said leases.

Note 40 : Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures

31 March 2019

Trade & Other Receivables Trade & Other Payables

Type Of Currency  Currency Balance  
(in millions)

Amount in ` Type Of Currency  Currency Balance 
(in millions) 

Amount in `

USD  0.49  34.00 USD 8.45 586.44

GBP  0.07  6.27 GBP 11.42 1,030.64

40.27 1,617.08

31 March 2018

Trade & Other Receivables Trade & Other Payables

Type Of Currency  Currency Balance  
(in millions)

Amount in ` Type Of Currency  Currency Balance 
(in millions) 

Amount in `

USD  54.01  3,233.86 USD  -    -   

GBP  10.94  1,111.14 GBP  -    -   

EURO  0.24  20.23 EURO  -    0.08 

 4,365.23  0.08 

Note 41 : Disclosure under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Group has given following unsecured Intercorporate loans during the years -

Name of the loanee Rate of Interest Payment terms March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Reliance Venture Assets Management Limited 11.25% On demand  46.10 -

Mohan Umrotkar  Nil On demand -  50.00 

Total  46.10  50.00 

Note: The Loans has been provided for general business purpose.
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Note 42 : Interest in Joint Venture

Company Name Country of 
Incorporation

% Share

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Divya Shakti Marketing Private Limited  India 50% 50%

Note 43 : The Group’s net worth has eroded, however, having regard to financial support from its promoters and further  restructuring 
exercise being implemented the financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Group is a going concern and that no 
adjustments are required to the carrying value of assets and liabilities.

Note 44 : On July 2, 2014, the Group has entered into a binding term sheet with Prime Focus Limited to sell the film and media 
services business for a net consideration of ` 3,500 after considering assignment of debt of ` 2,000. Subsequently, the Group 
entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (‘BTA’) with Prime Focus Limited for the sale of the business and the business was 
transferred effective closing of April 7, 2015.

During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Group had completed the transfer of business to Prime Focus Limited. As agreed the 
Group had transferred net assets of ` 6,872.57. As agreed Prime Focus Limited had issued its shares amounting to ` 3,500 at 
the price of ` 52 per share to the Group. Pending receipt of approval, the Group had not transferred assets pertaining to Studio 
business. Accordingly it had also not assigned debts of ` 2,000 to Prime Focus Limited. The loss of ` 1,334.52 on transfer of Film 
& Media services over and above ` 2,038.05 provided in year ended March 31, 2015 had been disclosed as an exceptional item. 
Subsequently the Group has received NOC from Film City. The Group has sent documents for execution to Prime Focus for their 
review and will be executed once approval is received. With transfer of Studio, liability of ` 2,000 will also get transferred.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has received the approval for the same and accordingly Studio alongwith 
liability of ` 2000 transferred to Prime Focus Limited on 25th February, 2019.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Carrying amount of assets relating to the discontinued operations  -    1,452.16 

Carrying amount of liabilities relating to the discontinued operations  
(Excluding value of loan of ` 2,000 to be assigned) 

 -    -   

Net assets/(liabilities) relating to the discontinued operations  -    1,452.16 
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Note 47 : Statutory group information

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 
to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the entity in the Group As at 31st March 2019

Net assets, i.e., total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other comprehensive 
income

Share in Total comprehensive 
income

As % of 
consolidated 
net assets 

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

profit and 
loss

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

Total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

1 2 3 4 5 4 5 4 5

A. 	 Parent Company                

	 Reliance MediaWorks Limited 111.33%  (19,315.65) 84.61%  (1,387.49) -25.13%  (0.09) 84.63%  (1,387.58)

B. 	 Subsidiaries                

	 Indian entities                

	 (i) 	 Reliance MediaWorks 
Theatres Limited

0.08%  (13.40) (0.13%)  2.16  -    -   (0.13%)  2.16 

	 (ii) 	 Big Synergy Media 
Limited

(1.87%)  325.26 (3.02%)  49.49 125.13%  0.43 (3.04%)  49.92 

	 (ii) 	 Reliance MediaWorks 
Financial Services Private 
Limited

(0.02%)  2.60 0.02%  (0.30)  -    -   0.02%  (0.30)

	 Foreign entities                

	 (i) 	 Global MediaWorks (UK) 
Limited

0.26%  (45.43) (0.54%)  8.93  -    -   (0.54%)  8.93 

	 (ii) 	 Global MediaWorks 
(USA) Inc. (formerly 
known as Reliance 
MediaWorks (USA) Inc.)

3.18%  (552.44) 0.12%  (1.97)  -    -   0.12%  (1.97)

C.	 Joint Venture (as per equity 
method)

               

	 (i)	 Divya Shakti Marketing 
Private Limited

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

D. 	 Associate (as per equity 
method)

               

	 (i)	 Prime Focus Limited (12.96%)  2,248.94 18.95%  (310.70)  -    -   18.95%  (310.70)

   (17,350.10)  (1,639.89)  0.34  (1,639.55)

Total Eliminations  (5,028.13)  -    -    -    -   

Total 100.00% (22,378.24) 100.00% (1,639.89) 100.00%  0.34 100.00%  (1,639.55)
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Name of the entity in the Group As at 31st March 2018

Net assets, i.e., total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other comprehensive 
income

Share in Total comprehensive 
income

As % of 
consolidated 
net assets 

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

profit and 
loss

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income"

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

Total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

1 2 3 4 5 4 5 4 5

A. 	 Parent Company                

	 Reliance MediaWorks Limited 131.78%  (17,928.05) 59.36%  (1,885.54) 104.14%  (0.31) 59.36%  (1,885.85)

B. 	 Subsidiaries                

	 Indian entities                

	 (i) 	 Reliance MediaWorks 
Theatres Limited

0.11%  (15.55) 0.01%  (0.17)  -    -   0.01%  (0.17)

	 (ii) 	 Big Synergy Media 
Limited

(2.02%)  275.34 (0.37%)  11.63 -4.14%  0.01 (0.37%)  11.64 

	 (ii) 	 Reliance MediaWorks 
Financial Services Private 
Limited

(0.02%)  2.90 32.79%  (1,041.52)  -    -   32.78%  (1,041.52)

	 Foreign entities                

	 (i) 	 Global MediaWorks (UK) 
Limited

0.36%  (48.75) 3.63%  (115.36)  -    -   3.63%  (115.36)

	 (ii) 	 Global MediaWorks 
(USA) Inc. (formerly 
known as Reliance 
MediaWorks (USA) Inc.)

3.79%  (515.30) 0.07%  (2.16)  -    -   0.07%  (2.16)

C. 	 Associate (as per equity 
method)

               

	 (i)	 Prime Focus Limited (34.00%)  4,624.90 4.52%  (143.54)  -    -   4.52%  (143.54)

   (13,604.51)  (3,176.65)  (0.30)  (3,176.95)

Total Eliminations  (4,568.31)  (262.05)  -    -    (262.05)

Total 100.00% (18,172.83) 100.00% (3,438.70) 100.00%  (0.30) 100.00%  (3,439.00)

Note 48 : Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s 
classification / disclosure.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M.S. Sethi & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109407W

Manoj Sethi 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 039784

Satish Kadakia 
Whole-time Director & CFO 
DIN: 07004001

Sushil Kumar Agrawal 
Director 
DIN: 00400892

Mangala Savla 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No.:28089)

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 29, 2019

Place	:	Mumbai 
Date	 :	August 29, 2019
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Reliance MediaWorks Limited
Registered Office: Communication Centre, Film City Complex, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 065
CIN: U29299MH1987PLC045446, Tel.: +91 22 3347 3600 Fax: +91 22 3347 3601
Website: www.reliancemediaworks.com, E-mail: investor.complaints@relianceada.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

*DP Id ./ Client Id. Name and Address of the registered Shareholder
Regd. Folio No.
No. of Share(s) held

(* Applicable for members holding share(s) in electronic form)

I / We hereby record my / our presence at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
held on Monday, September 30, 2019 at 10.0.0 A.M. at Reliance Studio, Film City Complex,  Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 065.

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature
Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

Reliance MediaWorks Limited
Registered Office: Communication Centre, Film City Complex, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 065
CIN: U29299MH1987PLC045446, Tel.: +91 22 3347 3600 Fax: +91 22 3347 3601
Website: www.reliancemediaworks.com, E-mail: investor.complaints@relianceada.com

FORM NO. MGT-11
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member(s) 
Registered Address

E-mail Id: 
*DP Id. / Client Id. Regd. Folio No. 

(* Applicable for members holding share(s) in electronic form)

I / We, being the member(s) of ……………………………............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
(1) 	 Name: ……………………………......................................... Address: ……………………………………..............................................................................
	 E-mail Id: ………………………......................................... Signature……………………..............................................................  or failing him
(2) 	 Name: ……………………………......................................... Address: ……………………………………..............................................................................
	 E-mail Id: ………………………......................................... Signature……………………..............................................................  or failing him
(3) 	 Name: ……………………………......................................... Address: ……………………………………..............................................................................
	 E-mail Id: ………………………......................................... Signature …………………..............................................................................................

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my /our behalf at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Monday, September 30, 2019 at 10:00 A.M. at Reliance Studio, Film City Complex, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai 400 065, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolution no. and Matter of Resolution For Against
1. To consider and adopt:

a)	� the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, and

b)	 the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2019 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Director in place of  Mr. Satish Kadakia (DIN: 07004001), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint Ms. Maya Nair as a Director.
4. To approve Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures and / or other Debt Securities.

 
Signed this  day of , 2019.

Signature of the Shareholder(s) , Signature of Proxy holder(s) , 

Affix  
Revenue  
Stamp 

Note: This form of Proxy in order to effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

PROXY FORM

"

TEAR HERE

"





PLEASE SIGN AND SEND THIS TO KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PRIVATE LIMITED

 FORM FOR UPDATION OF RECORDS

"
"

Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
Communication Centre  
Goregaon (East)  
Mumbai 400 065

Dear Sir(s),

Sub.: Updation of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details

This has reference to circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20, 2018 issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI), regarding mandatory updation of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details.

I / We furnish the following information for your reference and record:

Folio Number

A.	 Bank account details

Mobile no. of the sole / first holder

E-mail ID.

Name of bank

Branch name

Branch address 
with PIN code

Account Number 
(as appearing in 
the cheque leaf)

Account type Saving Current

			   Please place a tick mark () in the appropriate box	

9 Digit Code No. 
of Bank / Branch 
as  appearing on 
MICR cheque 
issued by the bank

(9 Digit Code Number appearing on the MICR Bank of the Cheque supplied by the bank)

Please attach original cancelled cheque leaf with names of shareholders / bank passbook showing 
names of  shareholders, duly attested by an authorised bank official.

11 Digit Indian 
Financial System 
Code (IFSC)



B.	 Permanent Account Number (PAN) details

(Sole / First Holder) (Second Holder) (Third Holder)

I / We confirm that whatever stated hereinabove is true and correct and that the documents being furnished by me / us are valid and 
in force and may be used by Karvy Computershare Private Limited to update records of all companies as mentioned in this letter and 
for all communication and disbursement of any dividend in future.

(Sole / First Holder)
Signature

(Second Holder)
Signature

(Third Holder)
Signature

Encl. : as above

Date :

Place :



Reliance MediaWorks Limited

99

Route Map to the AGM Venue
Venue : Reliance MediaWorks Limited, Film City Complex, Goregaon (East), Mumbai  400 065

Landmark : Film City Complex

Distance from Goregaon Station (East) : 5.6 km

Distance from Western Express Highway (Oberoi Mall) : 4.0 km
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If undelivered please return to :

Link Intime India Private Limited 
(Unit: Reliance MediaWorks Limited) 
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikroli (West)
Mumbai 400 083, Maharashtra, India
Website: www.linkintime.co.in 
Tel			  :  + 91 22 4918 6270
Fax		  :	+ 91 22 4918 6060 
E-mail	 : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in


